
 

NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 
 

REGULAR MEETING 
AGENDA 

 
 
 

JANUARY 9, 2012 
CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Submitted By 
The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov�




 

 

TO: The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
 Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda. Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members. I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 



 

 

 

 
VISION: 
To honor the legacy of the past and build a strong, vibrant future and be an 
attractive place to live, work, and grow a business. 
 
GOALS: 
Provide a safe, clean, and livable city 
 Practice good stewardship of infrastructure  
 Maintain high quality professional community oriented police and fire protection 
 Conserve resources in an environmentally responsible manner 
 Encourage development toward a walkable, livable community 
 
Provide effective and efficient local government 
 Demonstrate excellence in community services 
 Maintain fiscally sustainable government 
 Attract and support a committed and innovative workforce 
 Develop and maintain efficiencies with internal and external partners 
 Conduct city business and engage in public policy formation in a clear and 

transparent manner 
 
Build a sense of community 
 Communicate internally and externally in a timely and accurate manner 
 Develop platforms for transparent, deliberative and meaningful community 

conversations 
 Involve all stakeholders in communication and engagement activities 
 Encourage volunteerism and new methods for community involvement 
 Implement the connectedness of community outlines in the Master Plan 2008 
 
Attract and retain business investment 
 Clearly articulate an economic development plan 
 Create an inclusive, entrepreneurial culture internally and externally 
 Clarify, reduce and streamline investment hurdles 
 Consistently enhance the synergy between existing businesses and growing 

economic sectors 
 Market the advantages of living and working in Troy through partnerships 

 

TROY CITY COUNCIL 
 

VISION STATEMENT AND GOALS 
Adopted: Monday, February 7, 2011 

 



 

 

 

 

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
January 9, 2012 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers 
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

INVOCATION: Pastor Steve Husava – Northfield Hills Baptist Church 1 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 1 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 1 

B. ROLL CALL: 1 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS: 1 

C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations 1 

a) Proclamation of Appreciation to Meritor, Inc. for Generous Donation to Troy 
Public Library ........................................................................................................ 1 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

D-1 No Carryover Items 1 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

E-1 Public Hearing to Receive Public Input on the City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance 
Authority Utilizing Tax-Exempt Bonds for William Beaumont Hospital - Troy 1 



 

 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT: 2 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 3 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 3 

H-1  No Postponed Items 3 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 3 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: None Scheduled 3 

I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: None Scheduled 3 

I-3 Closed Session to Discuss T.R. Pieprzak v Troy 3 

I-4 Wireless Devices (Smartphones) and Service Plans US General Services 
Administration (GSA) Contract GS-35F-0119P 3 

I-5 Acceptance of the 2011 Assistance to Firefighters Grant 4 

I-6 Postponement of the Hearing for the Revocation of a Massage Facility License – 
Recovery Spa, Inc. – 1975 E. Maple Rd. 4 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 5 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 5 

J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 5 

J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 5 

a) Regular City Council Meeting of December 19, 2011 ........................................... 5 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: 5 

J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 5 



 

 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution #10: Travel Authorization and Approval to 
Expend Funds for Council Member Travel Expenses – National League of 
Cities’ 2012 Congressional City Conference ........................................................ 5 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution #10: Travel Authorization and Approval to 
Expend Funds for Council Member Travel Expenses – Michigan Municipal 
League 2012 Capital Conference ......................................................................... 6 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution #4: Michigan Intergovernmental Trade 
Network (MITN) Purchasing Cooperative Award – Gasoline and Diesel Fuel ...... 6 

J-5 Request to Abandon Right of Way and Utility Easements Previously Granted to 
the City of Troy – Sidwell #88-20-14-401-006, Athens Parc Site Condominium 6 

J-6 Mon Jin Lau Annual Fireworks Use Request 7 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 7 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: 7 

a) Announcement of Public Hearing for Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate 
(IFEC) for Tepel Brothers Printing, Inc. at 1725 John R – January 23, 2012 ....... 7 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  
some future point in time): None Submitted 7 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 7 

L-1  Mayor Daniels Referrals Regarding City Council Rules of Procedure 7 

a) 2008-2009 City Council Rules of Procedure ........................................................ 7 
b) Recommended Rules of Procedures - Changes Outline ...................................... 7 

L-2  Mayor Daniels Requested Discussion Regarding the Creation of a Suicide 
Prevention Program Involving the City of Troy, City Council, City Management, 
Troy Youth Assistance, Troy School District and Perspectives of Troy 7 

L-3  Council Member Slater Submitted Resolution for Approval of MDOT Sub-Contract 
with Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. at a Reduced Amount for Architect & Engineering 
Services for the Final Design of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility Not to 
Exceed $6.272,500 7 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 11 

M-1   No Council Comments Advanced 11 



 

 

N. REPORTS 11 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: None Submitted 11 

N-2 Department Reports: 11 

a) 2011 Fourth Quarter Litigation Report ................................................................ 11 
b) Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority (MMRMA) – Risk Avoidance 

Program (RAP) Grant ......................................................................................... 11 
c) Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility, Operation and Maintenance Cost Estimate 

as Requested by Council Members Henderson and Tietz ................................. 11 

N-3  Letters of Appreciation: 11 

a) Letter of Appreciation to Sergeant Haddad from Tawfik Alazem, Detroit 
Director of U.S. Committee for Refugees and Immigrants ................................. 11 

b) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Daniel Fair, Thanking Captain 
Frye, Captain Scherlinck, Lieutenant Redmond, Officer Feld, Officer Rushton, 
Officer Barrows, Officer Bordo, Officer LaForest and Officer Browne for 
Assistance .......................................................................................................... 11 

c) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Tamara Jordan ............................... 11 

N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed 11 

N-5  Notice of Hearing for the Customers of Consumers Energy Company – Case No. 
U-16860 11 

N-6  City of Troy Snow and Ice Control Procedures 11 

N-7  Meet the Mayor at the Community Center – Dates, Times and Room Number 11 

N-8  Local Area Unemployment Statistics Update 11 

O. STUDY ITEMS 11 

O-1  City Council Rules of Procedure 11 

P. CLOSED SESSION: 11 

P-1  No Closed Session Requested 11 



 

 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 11 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 12 

SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 12 

Monday, January 23, 2012 Regular Meeting ......................................................... 12 
Monday, February 6, 2012 Regular Meeting ......................................................... 12 
Monday, February 20, 2012 Regular Meeting ....................................................... 12 
Monday, March 5, 2012  Regular Meeting ............................................................. 12 
Monday, March 19, 2012 Regular Meeting ............................................................ 12 
Monday, April 2, 2012  Regular Meeting ............................................................... 12 
Monday, April 16, 2012 Regular Meeting .............................................................. 12 
Monday, May 7, 2012 Regular Meeting ................................................................. 12 
Monday, May 14, 2012 Regular Meeting ............................................................... 12 
Monday, June 4, 2012 Regular Meeting ................................................................ 12 
Monday, June 18, 2012 Regular Meeting .............................................................. 12 
Monday, July 9, 2012 Regular Meeting ................................................................. 12 
Monday, July 23, 2012 Regular Meeting ............................................................... 12 
Monday, August 13, 2012 Regular Meeting .......................................................... 12 
Monday, August 27, 2012 Regular Meeting .......................................................... 12 
Monday, September 10, 2012 Regular Meeting .................................................... 12 
Monday, September 24, 2012 Regular Meeting .................................................... 12 
Monday, October 8, 2012 Regular Meeting ........................................................... 12 
Monday, October 22, 2012 Regular Meeting ......................................................... 12 
Monday, November 12, 2012 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 12 
Monday, November 26, 2012 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 12 
Monday, December 3, 2012 Regular Meeting ....................................................... 12 
Monday, December 17, 2012 Regular Meeting ..................................................... 12 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 12 

Monday, April 23, 2012 Special Budget Study Session ......................................... 12 
Monday, April 30, 2012 Special Budget Study Session ......................................... 12 





CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 9, 2012 
 

- 1 - 

INVOCATION: Pastor Steve Husava – Northfield Hills Baptist Church 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

B. ROLL CALL: 
a)  Mayor Janice Daniels 

Jim Campbell 
Wade Fleming 
Dave Henderson 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 
Doug Tietz 

 
b) Excuse Absent Council Members: 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-01-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of                at 
the Regular City Council Meeting of January 9, 2012, due to                      
 
Yes:       
No:       
 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  
C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations  
a) Proclamation of Appreciation to Meritor, Inc. for Generous Donation to Troy Public 

Library 
 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items  
 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 Public Hearing to Receive Public Input on the City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance 

Authority Utilizing Tax-Exempt Bonds for William Beaumont Hospital - Troy 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-01-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 9, 2012 
 

- 2 - 

WHEREAS, The City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority (the “Authority”) proposes to 
make loans to William Beaumont Hospital (the “Hospital”), to be used, in part, by the Hospital 
to refinance indebtedness used to finance the construction, renovation and equipping of certain 
hospital facilities in the City of Troy, Michigan; and 

WHEREAS, The Authority intends to issue City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority 
Hospital Revenue Refunding Bonds (William Beaumont Hospital Obligated Group), in one or 
more series (the “Bonds”) on behalf of the Hospital in the aggregate principal amount of not to 
exceed $120,000,000 to provide funds with which to make loans to the Hospital; and 

WHEREAS, The Bonds will be limited obligations of the Authority and will not constitute general 
obligations or debt of the City of Royal Oak, the City of Troy, the County of Oakland, the State 
of Michigan or any political subdivision thereof; and 

WHEREAS, The City Council has held a public hearing after notice was published as provided 
in, and in satisfaction of the applicable public hearing requirements of, the Internal Revenue 
Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”); and 

WHEREAS, A record of public hearing will be maintained with the City Clerk; and 

WHEREAS, The Authority has requested that this City Council approve the issuance of the 
Bonds by the Authority; and 

WHEREAS, The City Council of the City of Troy desires to express its approval of the issuance 
of the Bonds by the Authority. 

IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF TROY, AS FOLLOWS: 

1. Solely for the purpose of fulfilling the public approval requirements of the Code, 
the City Council of the City of Troy hereby APPROVES the issuance, sale and delivery of not to 
exceed $120,000,000 in aggregate principal amount of the Bonds by the Authority. 

2. The City Clerk is hereby DIRECTED to provide three (3) certified copies of this 
resolution to the Secretary of the Authority. 

Yes: 
No: 
 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT:  
In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 – Members of 
the Public and Visitors: 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council requests that if 
you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) 
whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are 
encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to 
the Mayor and Council. 
 
• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended with 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 9, 2012 
 

- 3 - 

the majority consent of City Council. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to five 

(5) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to five 

minutes to address Postponed, Regular Business or Consent Agenda items or any other item 
as permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment portion of the agenda. 

• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority of the City Council 
members. 

• City Council may wish to schedule a Special Meeting for Agenda items that are related to 
topics where there is significant public input anticipated. 

• Through a request of the Chair and a majority vote of City Council, public Comment may be 
limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up to speak either on a Public 
Hearing item or for the Public Comment period of the agenda. 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1  No Postponed Items 
 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: None Scheduled 
 
I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: None Scheduled 
 
I-3 Closed Session to Discuss T.R. Pieprzak v Troy 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-01-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by 
MCL15.268 (e) Pending Litigation – T.R. Pieprzak v. Troy. 
 
Yes:  
No: 
 
I-4 Wireless Devices (Smartphones) and Service Plans US General Services 

Administration (GSA) Contract GS-35F-0119P 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-01-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 9, 2012 
 

- 4 - 

WHEREAS, In an effort to provide greater efficiencies to department personnel to continually 
improve service delivery for the community, wireless devices have recently been tested with 
various providers the results of which found Verizon Wireless offered considerably higher data 
speed and reliability with their android Smartphone technology and 4G capability than any other 
service provider in this area; and 
 
WHEREAS, GSA contract pricing contained in GS-35F-0119P with Verizon Wireless 
represents the best value and results in the lowest overall cost alternative solution when 
considering price, special features, and administrative costs;  
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby determines it to be in 
the public’s best interest to AUTHORIZE the City of Troy to purchase wireless devices 
(Smartphones) and service plans from Verizon Wireless through the GSA schedule contract 
GS-35F-0119P at rates as contained in Appendix I, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting.   
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-5 Acceptance of the 2011 Assistance to Firefighters Grant 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-01-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the Troy Fire Department to receive 
a FEMA Assistance to Firefighters Grant and expend $5,000 for the purchase of equipment 
and training in accordance with the award; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the Fire Department 
budget to receive the grant funding of $20,000. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
I-6 Postponement of the Hearing for the Revocation of a Massage Facility License – 

Recovery Spa, Inc. – 1975 E. Maple Rd. 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-01-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby POSTPONES the hearing for the revocation of a 
Massage Facility License for Recovery Spa, Inc. at 1975 E. Maple Rd. to the Regular City 
Council Meeting scheduled on Monday, January 23, 2012. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 9, 2012 
 

- 5 - 

Yes:       
No:       
 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 
J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-01-      
Moved by       
Seconded by       
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented with the exception of Item(s)  ______________      , which SHALL BE 
CONSIDERED after Consent Agenda (I) items, as printed. 
 
Yes:       
No:       
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-01-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 

a) Regular City Council Meeting of December 19, 2011 
 
J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  
a) Proclamation of Appreciation to Meritor, Inc. for Generous Donation to Troy Public 

Library 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:  

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution #10: Travel Authorization and Approval to 
Expend Funds for Council Member Travel Expenses – National League of Cities’ 
2012 Congressional City Conference 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-01-      
 
RESOLVED, That Council Members are AUTHORIZED to attend the National League of Cities’ 
2012 Congressional City Conference from March 10 - 14, 2012 in Washington, DC, in 
accordance with accounting procedures of the City of Troy.  



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 9, 2012 
 

- 6 - 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution #10: Travel Authorization and Approval to 
Expend Funds for Council Member Travel Expenses – Michigan Municipal League 
2012 Capital Conference 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-01-      
 
RESOLVED, That Council Members are AUTHORIZED to attend the Michigan Municipal 
League 2012 Capital Conference from March 20 - 21, 2012 in Lansing, Michigan, in 
accordance with accounting procedures of the City of Troy. 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution #4: Michigan Intergovernmental Trade Network 
(MITN) Purchasing Cooperative Award – Gasoline and Diesel Fuel 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-01-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS  two-year cooperative contracts to 
purchase gasoline and diesel fuel in truck transport and tank wagon deliveries with an option to 
renew for two (2) additional years from the low bidders meeting specifications – Petroleum 
Traders Corporation of Fort Wayne, IN, RKA Petroleum Companies of Romulus, MI, and Atlas 
Oil Company of Taylor, MI as a result of a bid process through the City of Sterling Heights for 
MITN Purchasing Cooperative members including Troy at factors and prices contained in the 
bid tabulation opened November 1, 2011, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting with a contract expiration of January 31, 2014. 
 
J-5 Request to Abandon Right of Way and Utility Easements Previously Granted to the 

City of Troy – Sidwell #88-20-14-401-006, Athens Parc Site Condominium 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-01-      
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy has received a request from Linda and David Purvis, owners of 
the property having Sidwell #88-20-14-401-006, to abandon previously granted right-of-way 
and easements as recorded in L39522 P642, L39547 P696, L39547 P709, L39547 P712, 
L39547 P754 and L39547 P670. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the right-of-way granted by warranty deed as recorded 
in L39522 P642 and the five easements as recorded in L39547 P696, L39547 P709, L39547 
P712, L39547 P754, and L39547 P670 are hereby ABANDONED, and that City Council 
AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute a Quit Claim deed conveying these 
interests back to the property owners David and Linda Purvis; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Clerk shall RECORD the Quit Claim Deed with the 
Oakland County Register of Deeds, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original 
Minutes of this meeting. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 9, 2012 
 

- 7 - 

J-6 Mon Jin Lau Annual Fireworks Use Request 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2012-01-      
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby ISSUES a fireworks permit to Mon Jin Lau, located 
at 1515 East Maple Rd., for the use of fireworks at its annual Chinese New Year celebration on 
February 7, 2012.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Troy Fire Department will inspect the fireworks to be used 
along with the site to assure compliance with applicable codes and standards for such a 
fireworks display. 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  
a) Announcement of Public Hearing for Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate 

(IFEC) for Tepel Brothers Printing, Inc. at 1725 John R – January 23, 2012 
 
K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
 some future point in time): None Submitted 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  

Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 

L-1  Mayor Daniels Referrals Regarding City Council Rules of Procedure 
a) 2008-2009 City Council Rules of Procedure  
b) Recommended Rules of Procedures - Changes Outline 
 
L-2  Mayor Daniels Requested Discussion Regarding the Creation of a Suicide 

Prevention Program Involving the City of Troy, City Council, City Management, 
Troy Youth Assistance, Troy School District and Perspectives of Troy 

 
L-3  Council Member Slater Submitted Resolution for Approval of MDOT Sub-Contract 

with Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. at a Reduced Amount for Architect & Engineering 
Services for the Final Design of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility Not to Exceed 
$6.272,500 

 
Council Member Slater Requested This Item Be Removed From the Agenda 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 9, 2012 
 

- 8 - 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

M-1   No Council Comments Advanced 

N. REPORTS 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: None Submitted 
 
N-2 Department Reports:  
a) 2011 Fourth Quarter Litigation Report 
b) Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority (MMRMA) – Risk Avoidance Program 

(RAP) Grant  
c) Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility, Operation and Maintenance Cost Estimate as 

Requested by Council Members Henderson and Tietz 
 
N-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Appreciation to Sergeant Haddad from Tawfik Alazem, Detroit Director of U.S. 

Committee for Refugees and Immigrants  
b) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Daniel Fair, Thanking Captain Frye, Captain 

Scherlinck, Lieutenant Redmond, Officer Feld, Officer Rushton, Officer Barrows, Officer 
Bordo, Officer LaForest and Officer Browne for Assistance  

c) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Tamara Jordan 
 
N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed 
 
N-5  Notice of Hearing for the Customers of Consumers Energy Company – Case No. 

U-16860 
 
N-6  City of Troy Snow and Ice Control Procedures 

N-7  Meet the Mayor at the Community Center – Dates, Times and Room Number 
 
N-8  Local Area Unemployment Statistics Update 
 

O. STUDY ITEMS 

O-1  City Council Rules of Procedure 
a) 2010-11 City Council Rules of Procedure 
 

P. CLOSED SESSION:  

P-1  No Closed Session Requested  
 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 

 
Respectfully submitted, 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 9, 2012 
 

- 9 - 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
 

FUTURE CITY COUNCIL PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
 

SCHEDULED REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
Monday, January 23, 2012............................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, February 6, 2012 ............................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, February 20, 2012 ............................................................................. Regular Meeting 
Monday, March 5, 2012  .................................................................................. Regular Meeting 
Monday, March 19, 2012 ................................................................................. Regular Meeting 
Monday, April 2, 2012  ..................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, April 16, 2012 .................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, May 7, 2012....................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, May 14, 2012..................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, June 4, 2012 ..................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, June 18, 2012 ................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, July 9, 2012 ....................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, July 23, 2012 ..................................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, August 13, 2012 ................................................................................ Regular Meeting 
Monday, August 27, 2012 ................................................................................ Regular Meeting 
Monday, September 10, 2012 .......................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, September 24, 2012 .......................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, October 8, 2012 ................................................................................ Regular Meeting 
Monday, October 22, 2012 .............................................................................. Regular Meeting 
Monday, November 12, 2012 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, November 26, 2012 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
Monday, December 3, 2012 ............................................................................. Regular Meeting 
Monday, December 17, 2012 ........................................................................... Regular Meeting 
 

 

SCHEDULED SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
 
Monday, April 23, 2012 .............................................................. Special Budget Study Session 
Monday, April 30, 2012 .............................................................. Special Budget Study Session 

 
 



 PROCLAMATION OF APPRECIATION  
 TO MERITOR, INC  

 FOR GENEROUS DONATION TO TROY PUBLIC LIBRARY 
   

WHEREAS, Christmas came early to the Troy Public Library in the form of a substantial donation from 
Meritor employees and private individuals, for a collection of materials and equipment to enhance the 
Library’s Special Needs Collection. The focus of this donation is visual impairments and reading 
disabilities, particularly those in children with albinism; and 
 
WHEREAS, A generous monetary donation was given to the Troy Public Library to purchase large print 
materials, with emphasis on novels for ages 8-12; non-fiction books on visual impairments; and 
magnifiers to assist in reading; and 
   
WHEREAS, The Friends of the Troy Public Library also contributed towards this project to purchase kits 
with special reading materials and magnifiers that children can use at home. The materials will help 
children who have visual impairments such as albinism, dyslexia, ADHD, traveling eye, an inability to see 
color, and more; and 
 
WHEREAS, The initiative for the project came from a group of southeast Michigan businesswomen 
representing Meritor, Henry Ford Health Systems, GM and Inforum.  These women are part of a 
leadership class that included a community service project.  The project was to increase awareness and 
social acceptance of children with albinism.  Their interaction with the children brought to light the vision 
difficulties that are common with these beautiful children; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Library’s Special Needs Collection was implemented in October 2007 by a gift from the 
Friends of the Troy Public Library.  It includes traditional Library materials such as books and DVDs, as 
well as interactive items that children with disabilities can use to enhance and promote learning and skill-
building.  Children of all ages like to keep up with popular fiction and this enhanced Large Type book 
collection will enable those with visual impairments to do just that; and  
 
WHEREAS, To introduce the community to the new collection, the Library has planned a story time event 
on Saturday, January 21, at 11:15 a.m. This story time is designed for pre-school-aged children, 
through 2nd graders.  Following the story time, a tour of the new collections and materials will be given;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council does hereby thank the employees 
from Meritor for their generous donation which will benefit the entire Troy community; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Council joins the citizens of this community in appreciation 
and celebration of the generosity of the Meritor employees for the wonderful donation which will enhance 
the Library’s Special Needs Collection and specifically help children who have visual impairments.  
 
Presented this 9th day of January 2012 
 

BittnerA
Text Box
C-01 & J-03a



 
 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 
January 5, 2012 
 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Tom Darling, Interim Director of Finance and Administrative Services 
       
SUBJECT: Public Hearing to Receive Public Input on the City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance 

Authority Utilizing Tax-Exempt Bonds for William Beaumont Hospital - Troy 
 
 
As required by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”) the City of Troy is 
holding a public hearing to receive public input in advance of authorizing the City of Royal Oak 
Hospital Finance Authority to issue bonds that will be used to refund bond the proceeds of which 
were used to construct, acquire, renovate, equip, rehabilitate and/or improve the hospital facility of 
William Beaumont Hospital in the City of Troy. 
 
It should be noted that approval of the issuance of bonds by the City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance 
Authority for the benefit of the City of Troy will not have any effect on the ability of the City of Troy to 
issue bonds, nor will it involve any liability to the City of Troy for the bonds. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TD/bt\AGENDA ITEMS\2012\1.09.12 – Public Hearing to Receive Input on the City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority Utilizing  
Tax-Exempt Bonds for William Beaumont Hospital - Troy 
 
 
 
 

BittnerA
Text Box
E-01

BittnerA
Text Box



Founded in 1852 
by Sidney Davy Miller 
 
 
 
Kristin E. Nied 
(734) 668-7705 
nied@millercanfield.com 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Miller, Canfield, Paddock and Stone, P.L.C. 
150 West Jefferson, Suite 2500 

Detroit, Michigan  48226 
TEL (313) 963-6420 
FAX (313) 496-7500 

www.millercanfield.com 

MICHIGAN: Ann Arbor 
Detroit • Grand Rapids 

Kalamazoo • Lansing 
Saginaw • Troy 

FLORIDA: Naples 
ILLINOIS: Chicago 

MASSACHUSETTS: Cambridge 
NEW YORK: New York 

CANADA: Toronto • Windsor 
POLAND: Gdynia 

Warsaw • Wrocław 
 

 
 December 12, 2011  

 
John Szerlag, City Manager via e-mail to: j.szerlag@troymi.gov 
City of Troy 
500 West Big Beaver 
Troy, Michigan  48084 

RE: City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority – William Beaumont Hospital 

Dear Mr. Szerlag: 

William Beaumont Hospital is anticipating a financing through the City of Royal Oak 
Hospital Finance Authority utilizing tax-exempt bonds.  Miller Canfield is acting as bond 
counsel with respect to the bonds.  Although all of the bonds will be issued by the City of Royal 
Oak Hospital Finance Authority, as permitted by State law, a portion of the proceeds of the 
bonds will be used to refund bonds the proceeds of which were used to construct, acquire, 
renovate, equip, rehabilitate and/or improve the hospital facility of William Beaumont Hospital 
in the City of Troy. 

As required by the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), the City of 
Royal Oak must hold a public hearing and permit the issuance of the bonds.  In addition, the 
Code requires, when proceeds of the bonds will be used outside of the jurisdiction issuing the 
bonds, that such other jurisdiction also hold a public hearing and authorize the issuance of the 
bonds. 

To meet the requirements of the Code, we would like to request being placed on your 
City Council agenda for your January 9, 2012 meeting for the purpose of conducing a public 
hearing and approving the issuance of the bonds by the City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance 
Authority.  I am attaching a draft of the notice that will be released for publication later this 
week.  I am also attaching a draft of the proposed resolution that the City Council will consider.  
The format of the resolution is identical to ones that the City Council passed in 2009 and in other 
past years for financings of William Beaumont Hospital through the City of Royal Oak Hospital 
Finance Authority.   

The approval of the bonds by the City Council of the City of Troy is solely for the 
purpose of meeting the public approval requirements of the Code.  Such approval will not have 
any effect on the ability of the City of Troy (or affiliates) to issue bonds and will not involve any 
liability to the City of Troy (or affiliates).   

http://www.millercanfield.com/�


MILLER, CANFIELD, PADDOCK AND STONE, P.L.C. 

Mr. John Szerlag  
-2- 

 
December 12, 2011 

 
Please confirm that we can be placed on your agenda for your January 9, 2012, City 

Council meeting.   

 
Very truly yours, 

Miller, Canfield, Paddock and Stone, P.L.C. 

By:  
 Kristin E. Nied 

/s/ Kristin E Nied  

 
Enclosure 
 
 
19,591,275.1\006839-00008  
11/18/11 3:34 PM  



 

 
 

G:\Bid Award 10-11 New Format\Regular Business – WirelessDevices&Svc12.11.doc 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM

December 14, 2011 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
   
FROM:  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
  Gert Paraskevin, Information Technology Director 
  Gary G. Mayer, Police Chief 
  William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 
  Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Wireless Devices (Smartphones) and Service Plans 
  US General Services Administration (GSA) contract GS-35F-0119P 
 
 

Background 
The City of Troy has been authorized to utilize the State of Michigan contract for cellular service with Sprint/Nextel 
for the last ten years.  Departments could request equipment upgrades and change in service plans with justified 
business cases.  With the introduction of Smartphone technology, a new GSA contract with Verizon has proven to 
be a cheaper alternative to deliver wireless service. 
 
The City has been utilizing wireless technology to improve communication and access to information in the field for 
several years.  The Purchasing and IT departments have recently been working with a focus group to investigate the 
commercially available mobile data services to see how we can further improve efficiency and provide timely 
information to field personnel while reducing overall costs.  The Police, Fire and Public Works departments have 
tested current wireless devices and services including Android Smartphone technology from T-Mobile, Sprint and 
Verizon; and found Verizon service to provide considerably higher data speed and reliability.  
 
Advantages of utilizing Smartphones include:  

 Uninterrupted productivity with quick and easy access to email or other city resources. 
 Beneficial to staff on call 24/7 
 Equip employees in the field with high resolution cameras.  These pictures can then be sent via email for 

immediate feedback if necessary. 
 Internet access  

o Provides quick and easy access to information 
o Allows access to any City developed web applications 

 Will provide unlimited wireless access thereby eliminating the need for other external devices such as air cards.  
Combining two services into one will reduce monthly expenditures by approximately $27.99 per device. 

 Negates the need for a laptop in the field in some instances. 
 Can take advantage of the thousands of Smartphone applications currently available.  For example WeatherBug, 

Google Translate, Emergency Response Guidebook.   
 

Under our current Sprint contract through the State of Michigan only 3G services were available and although useful 
have proven to be relatively slow.  Of the providers tested only Verizon offered reliable high speed 4G service in 
Troy. 

 

Under Cooperative Purchasing, state and local entities may purchase a variety of technology from contracts 
awarded under GSA Federal Supply Schedule 70, Information Technology.  The GSA Schedule contract GS-35F-
0119P with Verizon Wireless represents the best value and results in the lowest overall cost alternative solution 
when considering price, special features, administrative costs, etc, as detailed in Appendix I. 
 
Recommendation 
City management is requesting authorization to utilize the Federal GSA contract GS-35F-0119P with Verizon 
Wireless for the purchase of wireless devices (Smartphones) and service plans at rates as contained in Appendix I. 
 
Fund Availability  
Funds are budgeted each year in various departments under their respective communication accounts.  

BittnerA
Text Box
I-04



APPENDIX I

VENDOR CONTRACT DESCRIPTION OF SERVICE
PEAK / OFF 

PEAK
4G 

COVERAGE

CURRENT 
MONTHLY 

ACCESS RATES  EST QTY
ESTIMATED TOTAL 
MONTHLY CHARGES

Verizon GSA Schedule 70
Nationwide, Unlimited N&W, 

Email/data
4000 shared 
minutes Available 125.04$                1 125.04$                       

  Mobile‐Mobile, Text messaging 400 minutes 49.99$                 30 1,499.70$                  
Wireless Access Unlimited 10.00$                 30 300.00$                      

1,924.74$                  

Verizon State of Michigan
Nationwide, Unlimited N&W, 

Email/data
4000 shared 
minutes Available 125.54$                1 125.54$                       

  Mobile‐Mobile, Text messaging 400 minutes 56.24$                 30 1,687.20$                  
Wireless Access Unlimited 29.99$                 30 899.70$                      

2,712.44$                  

Sprint State of Michigan
Nationwide, Unlimited N&W, 

Email/data                        
4000 shared 
minutes

Not Available 
in this area 112.49$                1 112.49$                       

  Mobile‐Mobile, Text messaging 400 minutes 55.00$                 30 1,650.00$                  
Wireless Access Unlimited 29.99$                 30 899.70$                      

2,662.19$                  

ONE‐TIME EQUIPMENT COSTS

Verizon Android Smartphone Technology Current Promotion ‐ $100/device

** Even though T‐Mobile was tested, their pricing is not shown, as they were not a viable solution due to unreliable text messaging,
a lack of coverage and dropped calls, and no push to talk technology.

COST ANALYSIS BREAKDOWN

HIGHLIGHTED VENDOR DENOTES BEST VALUE SOLUTION

Open market government pricing



  

 
 
January 3, 2012 
 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Tom Darling, Interim Financial Services Director 

William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 
 
SUBJECT:  Acceptance of the 2011 Assistance to Firefighters Grant 
 
 
Background 
 
The Assistance to Firefighters Grant (AFG) program is a grant program administered by the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency that was created by Congress to assist local fire departments in 
purchasing needed equipment and training. Troy has submitted annual AFG grant applications since 
the inception of the program in 2001 and this is the fourth AFG grant that has been awarded to the 
Troy Fire Department.  This grant was awarded to permit the fire department to purchase a 
standardized accountability system for incident scenes and provide Rapid Intervention Crew (RIC) 
training for department members.  
 
Fire departments are required by national standards to maintain real time accountability of all 
personnel on scene at incidents.  The MABAS mutual aid system utilizes a standardized system 
which permits multiple mutual aid fire departments to interoperate seamlessly at incidents.  This 
system is different than the locally developed “tag” system that is currently utilized.  This grant will 
permit the fire department to switch to the standardized system. 
 
Fire departments are also required by national standards to provide a Rapid Intervention Crew (RIC) 
at any incidents where firefighters enter IDLH (Immediately Dangerous to Life and Health) 
atmospheres. The purpose of the RIC is to provide immediate rescue capability in the event 
firefighters in the IDLH area become trapped or are otherwise unable to self rescue.  This grant will 
permit the fire department to provide specialized training for fire department personnel. 
 
Financial Considerations 
 
The grant is for $25,000 and requires a local match of 20% or $5,000. The fire department has 
budgeted funds in the current operating budget to for equipment and training which will be utilized for 
the match.  
 
Legal Considerations 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

BittnerA
Text Box
I-05



There are no legal considerations regarding the acceptance of this grant.  
 
Policy Considerations 
 
Acceptance of this grant and the purchase of the protective equipment supports the volunteer 
firefighters who help to make this a safe community. (Outcome Statement I) 
 
Recommendation 
 
City management recommends that the AFG grant be accepted in the amount of $25,000 with a local 
match of $5,000 which is budgeted in the Fire Department operating budget.  
 



BittnerA
Text Box
I-06













CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT December 19, 2011 
 

- 1 - 

Pastor Dan Lewis from Troy Christian Chapel performed the Invocation.  The Pledge of 
Allegiance was given. 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, December 19, 2011, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road.  Mayor Daniels called the meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 

B. ROLL CALL: 

Mayor Janice Daniels 
Jim Campbell 
Wade Fleming 
Dave Henderson 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 
Doug Tietz 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:  

C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations  
 
a) Continued Commitment to Traffic Safety Award Presented by Jim Santilli, 

Executive Director of the Traffic Improvement Association 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 

D-1 No Carryover Items  

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

E-1 No Public Hearings 
 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #6 – Order 
of Business 
 
Resolution #2011-11-284 
Moved by Henderson 
Seconded by Tietz 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedure for the City 
Council, Rule #6 Order of Business to hear public comment and to address Item I-6 Executive 
Summary – Transit Center. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

BittnerA
Text Box
J-02a



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT December 19, 2011 
 

- 2 - 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT:  

Hutson, Michael Spoke in support of Item I-6 Executive Summary–Transit Center 
Tagle, John Spoke in support of Item I-6 Executive Summary–Transit Center 
Lakin, Dave Spoke in support of Item I-6 Executive Summary–Transit Center 
Geiger, M.L. Spoke in support of Item I-6 Executive Summary–Transit Center 
Wengrow, Irv Spoke in support of Item I-6 Executive Summary–Transit Center 
Baxi, Minesh Spoke in opposition to Item I-6 Executive Summary–Transit Center 
Amann, Bryan Spoke in opposition to Item I-6 Executive Summary–Transit Center 
Crowl, Sam Spoke in support of Item I-6 Executive Summary–Transit Center 
Minnick, Dick Spoke in opposition to Item I-6 Executive Summary–Transit Center 
Vert, John Spoke in opposition to Item I-6 Executive Summary–Transit Center 
Nixon, Greta Spoke in support of Item I-6 Executive Summary–Transit Center 
Kilgore, Zach Spoke in support of Item I-6 Executive Summary–Transit Center 
Lukas, Paul Spoke in support of Item I-6 Executive Summary–Transit Center 
Bhatt, Kumar Spoke in support of Item I-6 Executive Summary–Transit Center 
Schepke, Gordon Spoke in opposition to Item I-6 Executive Summary–Transit Center 
Hodges, Michele Spoke in support of Item I-6 Executive Summary–Transit Center 
Strat, Thomas  Spoke in support of Item I-6 Executive Summary–Transit Center 
Greenwall, Jenny Spoke in opposition to Item I-6 Executive Summary–Transit Center 
Lamers, Duane  Spoke in opposition to Item I-6 Executive Summary–Transit Center 
Cowger, Bill Spoke in support of Item I-6 Executive Summary–Transit Center 
Eckhout, Fred Spoke in opposition to Item I-6 Executive Summary–Transit Center 
Staeger, Gerard Spoke in opposition to Item I-6 Executive Summary–Transit Center 
Peters, Richard Spoke in support of Item I-6 Executive Summary–Transit Center 
Ashcraft, John Spoke in support of Item I-6 Executive Summary–Transit Center 
Femminineo, Charlene Spoke in opposition to Item I-6 Executive Summary–Transit Center 
Murrish, Dale Spoke in opposition to Item I-6 Executive Summary–Transit Center 
Yashinsky, Neil Spoke in support of Item I-6 Executive Summary–Transit Center 
Grix, E. James Spoke in opposition to Item I-6 Executive Summary–Transit Center 
Cruz, Tony Spoke in opposition to Item I-6 Executive Summary–Transit Center 
Elder, Michelle Spoke in support of Item I-6 Executive Summary–Transit Center 
Martin, Susan S. Spoke in support of Item I-6 Executive Summary–Transit Center 
Krent, Tom Spoke in support of Item I-6 Executive Summary–Transit Center 
Kotubey, Jordan Spoke in support of Item I-6 Executive Summary–Transit Center 
DeBacker, Deborah Spoke in opposition to Item I-6 Executive Summary–Transit Center 
Haddad, Tony Spoke in opposition to Item I-6 Executive Summary–Transit Center 
Cherasaro, Nicholas Spoke in opposition to Item I-6 Executive Summary–Transit Center 
 
The meeting RECESSED at 9:52 PM. 
 
The meeting CONVENED at 10:00 PM. 
 
I-6 Executive Summary – Transit Center 
 
b) Rejection of All Proposals for RFP-COT ENG 10-44, Architect and Engineering 

Services for the Final Design of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility. Advise MDOT 
That City Council Rejects the $8,485,212 Grant from the Federal Rail Administration 

http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�


CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT December 19, 2011 
 

- 3 - 

and Forward This Resolution to the State of Michigan Department of 
Transportation and Federal Rail Administration.  

 
Moved by Tietz 
Seconded by Henderson 
 
WHEREAS, On September 12, 2011, the Troy City Council passed the following Resolution 
(2011-09-210):  
 

Resolution #2011-09-210: 
 
WHEREAS, A 2.41 acre site was deeded to the City of Troy as part of a Consent 
Judgment, with the condition that it be developed as a transit facility.   
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy received a $8,485,212 federal grant to fund the transit 
facility project through the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) High-
Speed Intercity Passenger Rail (HSIPR) Program, Federal Rail Administration (FRA), 
secured through a TIGER grant; and,  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy received a $1,300,000 Federal Congressional Bus & Bus 
Facilities earmark to fund the project, through the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), 
secured by Congressman Gary Peters; and, 
 
WHEREAS, The facility will be served by AMTRAK and the Suburban Mobility Authority 
for Regional Transportation (SMART), which will utilize the Troy Multi-Modal Transit 
Facility as a central hub for their bus network; and,  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility complements transit oriented initiatives 
throughout southeast Michigan, including the Woodward Light Rail and Detroit Region 
Aerotropolis projects. 
 
WHEREAS, Studies show that investment in public transit yields economic benefit to the 
surrounding area;  
 
WHEREAS, Public transportation provides transportation options, allows for mobility for 
underserved populations, provides congestion mitigation, creates jobs, assists in 
retaining young talent and helps regions to be competitive in the global economy. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES MDOT 
Capital Contract No. 2011-0231 between the City of Troy and the Michigan Department 
of Transportation for the final design and construction of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit 
Facility at an estimated cost to the City of Troy of $0.00, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor 
and City Clerk to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 

 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council has decided that it is not going to hire the highest rated firm 
as a result of a qualification based selection process, as directed by MDOT or any other 
architect to complete the final design for the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility, which is a tacit 
abandonment of the Project. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT December 19, 2011 
 

- 4 - 

 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, The Troy City Council hereby REJECTS ALL proposals for 
RFP-COT ENG 10-44, Architect and Engineering Services, opened November 2, 2011, for the 
Final Design of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, The City Council of the City of Troy ADVISES MDOT that City 
Council rejects the $8,485,212 grant from the Federal Rail Administration and FORWARDS this 
resolution to the State of Michigan Department of Transportation and the Federal Rail 
Administration, as administrator of the $8,485,212 ARRA grant funds. 
 
Resolution to Amend Resolution I-6 Executive Summary – Transit Center a) Approval of 
MDOT Sub-Contract with Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. for Architect Engineering Services 
for the Final Design of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility 
 
Moved by Fleming 
Seconded by  
 
Resolved, That City Council AMENDS Item I-6 Executive Summary – Transit Center a) 
Approval of MDOT Sub-Contract with Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. for Architect Engineering 
Services for the Final Design of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility to have a thorough value 
engineering review conducted by the architects and engineers already chosen for this project 
and have them give us a design that caps the total expenditures at no more than $5 million 
dollars, including contingencies; in addition, if the revised resolution is passed for this project 
capping the total expenditures at no more than $5 million dollars; a request that the business 
community through the Chamber of Commerce commit to finding ways to assist the City to pay 
for the annual operating expenses if, in fact, that the expenses are in excess of the revenue 
generated for this transit center to ensure that the operations for this facility are cost neutral to 
the City of Troy. 
 
The motion to amend was not seconded. 
 
Vote on Item I-6 Executive Summary – Transit Center b) Rejection of All Proposals for 
RFP-COT ENG 10-44, Architect and Engineering Services for the Final Design of the Troy 
Multi-Modal Transit Facility. Advise MDOT That City Council Rejects the $8,485,212 
Grant from the Federal Rail Administration and Forward This Resolution to the State of 
Michigan Department of Transportation and Federal Rail Administration 
 
Resolution #2011-12-285 
Moved by Tietz 
Seconded by Henderson 
 
WHEREAS, On September 12, 2011, the Troy City Council passed the following Resolution 
(2011-09-210):  
 

Resolution #2011-09-210: 
 
WHEREAS, A 2.41 acre site was deeded to the City of Troy as part of a Consent 
Judgment, with the condition that it be developed as a transit facility.   
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT December 19, 2011 
 

- 5 - 

WHEREAS, The City of Troy received a $8,485,212 federal grant to fund the transit 
facility project through the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act (ARRA) High-
Speed Intercity Passenger Rail (HSIPR) Program, Federal Rail Administration (FRA), 
secured through a TIGER grant; and,  
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy received a $1,300,000 Federal Congressional Bus & Bus 
Facilities earmark to fund the project, through the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), 
secured by Congressman Gary Peters; and, 
 
WHEREAS, The facility will be served by AMTRAK and the Suburban Mobility Authority 
for Regional Transportation (SMART), which will utilize the Troy Multi-Modal Transit 
Facility as a central hub for their bus network; and,  
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility complements transit oriented initiatives 
throughout southeast Michigan, including the Woodward Light Rail and Detroit Region 
Aerotropolis projects. 
 
WHEREAS, Studies show that investment in public transit yields economic benefit to the 
surrounding area;  
 
WHEREAS, Public transportation provides transportation options, allows for mobility for 
underserved populations, provides congestion mitigation, creates jobs, assists in 
retaining young talent and helps regions to be competitive in the global economy. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES MDOT 
Capital Contract No. 2011-0231 between the City of Troy and the Michigan Department 
of Transportation for the final design and construction of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit 
Facility at an estimated cost to the City of Troy of $0.00, and AUTHORIZES the Mayor 
and City Clerk to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the 
original Minutes of this meeting. 

 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council has decided that it is not going to hire the highest rated firm 
as a result of a qualification based selection process, as directed by MDOT or any other 
architect to complete the final design for the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility, which is a tacit 
abandonment of the Project. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, The Troy City Council hereby REJECTS ALL proposals for 
RFP-COT ENG 10-44, Architect and Engineering Services, opened November 2, 2011, for the 
Final Design of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, The City Council of the City of Troy ADVISES MDOT that City 
Council rejects the $8,485,212 grant from the Federal Rail Administration and FORWARDS this 
resolution to the State of Michigan Department of Transportation and the Federal Rail 
Administration, as administrator of the $8,485,212 ARRA grant funds.    
 
Yes: Tietz, Daniels 
No: Campbell, Fleming, Henderson, McGinnis, Slater 
 
MOTION FAILED 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT December 19, 2011 
 

- 6 - 

 
a) Approval of MDOT Sub-Contract with Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. for Architect 

Engineering Services for the Final Design of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility 
 
Moved by Slater 
Seconded by Campbell 
 
WHEREAS, A 2.41 acre site was deeded to the City of Troy as part of a Consent Judgment, with 
the condition that it be developed as a transit facility.   
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy received a $8,485,212 federal grant for the final design and 
construction of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility through the American Recovery and 
Reinvestment Act (ARRA) High-Speed Intercity Passenger Rail (HSIPR) Program, Federal Rail 
Administration (FRA), as secured through a TIGER grant; and 
 
WHEREAS, The facility will be served by AMTRAK and the Suburban Mobility Authority for 
Regional Transportation (SMART), which will utilize the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility as a 
central hub for their bus network; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility complements transit oriented initiatives 
throughout southeast Michigan, including the Detroit Region Aerotropolis projects; and 
 
WHEREAS, The purpose of the project is to benefit intercity passenger rail service, and the 
City is committed to helping achieve, the extent to which it is capable, the anticipated project 
benefits; and 
 
WHEREAS, The highest rated bidder, Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. of Pontiac, MI was selected 
using a Qualifications Based Selection process;  
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS the MDOT sub-
contract between the City of Troy and Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. to provide architectural and 
engineering services for the final design of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility at an estimated 
cost not to exceed $904,489.03. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT UPON consultants’ 
submission of properly executed proposal and contract documents, including agreements, 
insurance certificates and all other specified requirements. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, The Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to EXECUTE the 
agreements once in acceptable form and upon approval from the Michigan Department of 
Transportation. 
 
Resolution to Amend Item I-6 Executive Summary – Transit Center a) Approval of MDOT 
Sub-Contract with Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. for Architect Engineering Services for the 
Final Design of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility 
 
Moved by Fleming 
Seconded by  
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT December 19, 2011 
 

- 7 - 

Resolved, That the preceding Resolution to Amend by Substitution Item I-6 Executive 
Summary – Transit Center a) Approval of MDOT Sub-Contract with Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. 
for Architect Engineering Services for the Final Design of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility 
be AMENDED to read as follow: 
 

Resolved, That City Council AMENDS Item I-6 Executive Summary – Transit 
Center a) Approval of MDOT Sub-Contract with Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. for 
Architect Engineering Services for the Final Design of the Troy Multi-Modal 
Transit Facility to have a thorough value engineering review conducted by the 
architects and engineers already chosen for this project and have them give us a 
design that caps the total expenditures at no more than $6 million dollars, 
including contingencies; in addition, if the revised resolution is passed for this 
project capping the total expenditures at no more than $6 million dollars; a 
request that the business community through the Chamber of Commerce commit 
to finding ways to assist the City to pay for the annual operating expenses if, in 
fact, that the expenses are in excess of the revenue generated for this transit 
center to ensure that the operations for this facility are cost neutral to the City of 
Troy. 

 
The motion to amend was not seconded. 
 
Vote on Motion to Amend I-6 Executive Summary – Transit Center a) Approval of MDOT 
Sub-Contract  with Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. for Architect Engineering Services for the 
Final Design of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility 
 
Resolution #2011-12-286 
Moved by Slater 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
Resolved, That the preceding Resolution to Amend by Substitution Item I-6 Executive 
Summary – Transit Center a) Approval of MDOT Sub-Contract with Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. 
for Architect Engineering Services for the Final Design of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility 
be AMENDED to read as follow: 
 

Resolved, That City Council AMENDS Item I-6 Executive Summary – Transit 
Center a) Approval of MDOT Sub-Contract with Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. for 
Architect Engineering Services for the Final Design of the Troy Multi-Modal 
Transit Facility to have a thorough value engineering review conducted by the 
architects and engineers already chosen for this project and have them give us a 
design that caps the total expenditures at no more than $7.56 million dollars, with 
a contingency of $700,000, to achieve a potential total cost of $6.8 million 
dollars; in addition, if the revised resolution is passed for this project capping the 
total expenditures at no more than $7.5 million dollars, with a contingency of 
$700,000, a request that the business community through the Chamber of 
Commerce commit to finding ways to assist the City to pay for the annual 
operating expenses if, in fact, that the expenses are in excess of the revenue 
generated for this transit center to ensure that the operations for this facility are 
cost neutral to the City of Troy. 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT December 19, 2011 
 

- 8 - 

Yes: Slater, Campbell, McGinnis 
No: Tietz, Daniels, Fleming, Henderson 
 
MOTION FAILED 
 
Vote on Motion I-6 Executive Summary – Transit Center a) Approval of MDOT Sub-
Contract with Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. for Architect Engineering Services for the Final 
Design of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility 
 
Resolution #2011-12-287 
Moved by Slater 
Seconded by Campbell 
 
WHEREAS, A 2.41 acre site was deeded to the City of Troy as part of a Consent Judgment, with 
the condition that it be developed as a transit facility.   
 
WHEREAS, The City of Troy received a $8,485,212 federal grant for the final design and 
construction of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility through the American Recovery and 
Reinvestment Act (ARRA) High-Speed Intercity Passenger Rail (HSIPR) Program, Federal Rail 
Administration (FRA), as secured through a TIGER grant; and 
 
WHEREAS, The facility will be served by AMTRAK and the Suburban Mobility Authority for 
Regional Transportation (SMART), which will utilize the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility as a 
central hub for their bus network; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility complements transit oriented initiatives 
throughout southeast Michigan, including the Detroit Region Aerotropolis projects; and 
 
WHEREAS, The purpose of the project is to benefit intercity passenger rail service, and the 
City is committed to helping achieve, the extent to which it is capable, the anticipated project 
benefits; and 
 
WHEREAS, The highest rated bidder, Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. of Pontiac, MI was selected 
using a Qualifications Based Selection process;  
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS the MDOT sub-
contract between the City of Troy and Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. to provide architectural and 
engineering services for the final design of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility at an estimated 
cost not to exceed $904,489.03. 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT UPON consultants’ 
submission of properly executed proposal and contract documents, including agreements, 
insurance certificates and all other specified requirements. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, The Mayor and City Clerk are AUTHORIZED to EXECUTE the 
agreements once in acceptable form and upon approval from the Michigan Department of 
Transportation. 
 
Yes: McGinnis, Slater, Campbell 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT December 19, 2011 
 

- 9 - 

No: Henderson, Tietz, Daniels, Fleming 
 
MOTION FAILED 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT:  continued 

Sonneville, DuAnne Spoke in regards to a comment made by Mayor Daniels.  
Kruper, Eileen Spoke in regards to a comment made by Mayor Daniels.  
Savage, James Spoke about the divisive political climate in Troy. 
Kulesza, Christopher Spoke about transit facilities and a comment made by Mayor Daniels. 
Miller, Andrea Spoke in regards to a comment made by Mayor Daniels.  
Unknown Person Spoke about opinion related to a comment made by Mayor Daniels. 
Schepke, Gordon Spoke about respect between City Council and residents. 
Grix, James E. Spoke about public comment. 
Abrahim, Edna Spoke about respect between City Council and residents. 
Clark, Glenn Spoke about Home for the Holiday’s Shop Troy campaign with the 

business community and also Item L-1 Council Referrals. 

G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT 

H. POSTPONED ITEMS: 

H-1  Resolution to Revoke an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) and 
Vacate an Industrial Development District (IDD) Previously Granted and 
Established: Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc. – 2350 Meijer – Postponed from 
November 21, 2011 

 
Resolution #2011-12-288 
Moved by Fleming 
Seconded by Henderson 
 
WHEREAS, After due notice and proper hearing, the City Council of the City of Troy on 
September 22, 2008,  established an Industrial Development District (IDD) for property known 
as 2350 Meijer, Troy, MI 48084,  Parcel #; 88-20-32-200-018, in the name of Faurecia 
Automotive Seating, Inc.; and 
 
WHEREAS, Per the Letter of Agreement, between Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc. and the 
City of Troy, and per Public Act 198 of 1974, as amended, Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc. 
was allowed until December 31, 2010 to purchase and install all of the personal property to be 
abated, as reported on their application for exemption; and 
 
WHEREAS, Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc. has not purchased and installed all of the 
personal property that was to be abated, contrary to the terms of the Letter of Agreement 
between Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc. and the City of Troy, and in violation of Public Act 
198 of 1974, as amended; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby REVOKES the Industrial 
Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC), Certificate # 2008-507, and hereby VACATES the 
Industrial Development District (IDD) previously granted to Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc., 

http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�
http://avis/clerkpage/list.html#nowhere�


CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT December 19, 2011 
 

- 10 - 

for property located at 2350 Meijer, Troy, MI 48084, Parcel # 88-20-32-200-018, effective 
December 31, 2011; and 
 
BE IT ALSO RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Treasurer to 
invoice Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc. for the amount of the abated taxes as calculated by 
the City Assessor’s spreadsheet, which shall be ATTACHED and become a part of the Regular 
Minutes of this meeting; and 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS the City Clerk to forward, 
by certified mail, a copy of this Resolution to the State Tax Commission (STC), Treasury 
Building, P.O. Box 30471, Lansing, MI 48909-7971, and to Faurecia Automotive Seating, Inc. 
at 2350 Meijer, Troy, MI 48084. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

I. REGULAR BUSINESS: 

I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: None Scheduled 
 
I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: None Scheduled 
 
I-3 No Closed Session Requested 
 
I-4 Agreement to Provide Fleet Maintenance Services – City of Center Line 
 
Resolution #2011-12-289 
Moved by McGinnis 
Seconded by Campbell 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Interlocal Service Agreement for 
the City of Troy to provide fleet maintenance services to the City of Center Line; the City Clerk 
and Mayor are AUTHORIZED to execute the agreements. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
I-5 Resolution to Schedule a Public Hearing for City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance 

Authority – William Beaumont Hospital 
 
Resolution #2011-12-290 
Moved by Fleming 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT December 19, 2011 
 

- 11 - 

WHEREAS, William Beaumont Hospital is anticipating a financing through the City of Royal 
Oak Hospital Financing Authority utilizing tax-exempt bonds; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), requires  
a public hearing before authorizing the issuance of bonds by a hospital authority in all 
jurisdictions benefitting from the issuance; and  
 
WHEREAS, A portion of the proceeds of the bonds will be used to construct, acquire, renovate, 
equip, rehabilitate and/or improve hospital facilities in the City of Troy as well as to refund 
bonds, the proceeds of which were used to construct an addition to William Beaumont Hospital 
– Troy. 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby SCHEDULES a public 
hearing for Monday, January 9, 2012 at 7:30 PM in Council Chambers of Troy City Hall, 500 W. 
Big Beaver, Troy, MI  48084 for the purpose of receiving public input on the City of Royal Oak 
Hospital Financing Authority issuing tax-exempt bonds for William Beaumont Hospital. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

J. CONSENT AGENDA: 

J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2011-12-291 
Moved by McGinnis 
Seconded by Campbell 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES all items on the Consent Agenda as 
presented. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2011-12-291-J-2 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following Minutes as submitted: 
 

a. Regular City Council Meeting of December 5, 2011 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT December 19, 2011 
 

- 12 - 

J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 
 
J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:  

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Asphalt Paving 
Materials – Hot Patch 

 
Resolution #2011-12-291-J-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a one-year contract to provide asphalt 
paving materials hot patch to the lowest total bidder, Barrett Paving Materials, Inc. of Troy, for 
an estimated total cost of $91,500.00 at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened 
November 23, 2011, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting, with contract expiring December 31, 2012. 

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT UPON contractors’ 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements.  

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award: Sole Bidder – Fuel Pump 
Replacement - DPW 

 
Resolution #2011-12-291-J-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract for fuel pump replacements at 
the DPW facility to the sole bidder, Oscar W Larson Company of Clarkston, MI, for an 
estimated total cost of $31,780.00.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT UPON contractors’ 
submission of properly executed bid and proposal documents including insurance certificates, 
permits and all other specified requirements.            
 
J-5 Traffic Committee Recommendations and Minutes – November 16, 2011 
 
Resolution #2011-12-291-J-5 

Item 3: Barclay at Holly – Speed Study 

RESOLVED, That the Traffic Committee RECOMMENDS no changes at the intersection of 
Barclay at Holly. 

K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 

K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT December 19, 2011 
 

- 13 - 

K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
 some future point in time): None Submitted 

L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  

Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 

 
Vote on Resolution to Suspend Rules of Procedure for the City Council, Rule #26 – 
Continued Agenda Items Not Considered Before 12:00 AM 
 
Resolution #2011-12-292 
Moved by Tietz 
Seconded by Campbell 
 
RESOLVED, That City Council hereby SUSPENDS Rules of Procedure for the City Council, 
Rule #26 - Continued Agenda Items Not Considered Before 12:00 AM and AUTHORIZE City 
Council to EXTEND the adjournment time to complete items on the Agenda. 
 
Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
L-1  Council Referrals: 
 
a) Mayor Pro Tem McGinnis Submitted Proposed Resolution and Revised Troy City 

Council Code of Ethics 
 
Resolution #2011-12-293 
Moved by McGinnis 
Seconded by Fleming 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council believes that all public officials need to be exemplary 
representatives of their community; and 
 
WHEREAS, Guidelines for expected conduct clarify expectations; and  
 
WHEREAS, On October 18, 2010,  the Troy City Council adopted a Code of Ethics; and  
 
WHEREAS, There is now an opportunity for the current City Council to again express its 
commitment to adhere to a revised Code of Ethics.    
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That the Troy City Council ADOPTS the following 
Code of Ethics as the guideline for expected conduct of all Troy City Council Members:  

 
TROY CITY COUNCIL 
CODE OF ETHICS   
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT December 19, 2011 
 

- 14 - 

The Troy City Council shall: 
 
-Respect the confidentiality of privileged information; 
 
-Recognize that an individual council member has no authority to speak or act for 
council; 

 
-Work with other council members to establish effective policies; 
 
-Delegate authority for the running of the city to the manager and staff; 
 
-Encourage the free expression of opinion by all council members; 
 
-Seek systematic communications between council, staff, and all elements of the 
community; 

 
-Render all decisions based on the available facts and independent judgment rather 
than succumbing to the influence of individuals or special interest groups; 

 
-Make every effort to attend all meetings; 
 
-Become informed concerning the issues to be considered at each meeting; 
 
-Avoid conflicts of interest or the appearance thereof; 
 
-Refrain from using this position for personal benefit, nor for the benefit of family 
members or business associates; 

 
-Use the same care and caution when using electronic media as would be exercised 
when speaking face-to-face or through written memoranda; 

 
-Avoid use of derogatory or denigrating language. 
 

Yes: All-7 
No: None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

M. COUNCIL COMMENTS 

M-1   No Council Comments Advanced 
 
Mayor Pro Tem McGinnis announced two City of Troy sponsored Red Cross Blood Drives to be 
held at the Troy Community Center in Room 305 on December 28, 2011 and December 29, 
2011 from 9:00 AM – 3:00 PM.  Please contact Community Affairs Department at (248) 524-
1147 to schedule an appointment or at www.redcrossblood.org (access code is Troy). 
 
Council Member Tietz would like a Study Session on January 23, 2012 to discuss Item N-5 
Publically Funded Health Insurance Contributions Act (“Public Act 152 of 2011”).   
 

http://www.redcrossblood.org/�


CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - DRAFT December 19, 2011 
 

- 15 - 

Mayor Daniels requested confirmation of the Snow Removal Policy, and requests a tour of the 
City of Troy Department of Public Works Facility.   
 
Mayor Daniels requests that City Council accompany her at the podium when presenting 
proclamations. 

N. REPORTS 

N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
a) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)-Final-October 14, 2010 
b) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)-Final-September 22, 2011 
c) Planning Commission-Special/Study-Draft-October 25, 2011  
d) Planning Commission-Special/Study-Final-October 25, 2011 
e) Civil Service Commission (Act 78)-Draft-December 8, 2011 

Noted and Filed 
N-2 Department Reports:  
a) Building Department Report – November 2011 
b) 2011 City, Village and Township Millage Rates 

Noted and Filed 
N-3  Letters of Appreciation:  
a) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Nancy Morrison – Troy Community Coalition 

Thanking Officer Feld for a Presentation  
b) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Agent Jeffrey Frost – United States Secret 

Service Thanking Lieutenant Gordon, Officer Stopcynski, Officer Minton, Officer Raczka, 
Officer Breidenich, and Officer Julian for Assistance 

Noted and Filed 
N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed 

Noted and Filed 
N-5  Publically Funded Health Insurance Contributions Act (“Public Act 152 of 2011”)  

Noted and Filed 

O. STUDY ITEMS 

O-1  No Study Items Submitted 

P. CLOSED SESSION:  

P-1  No Closed Session Requested  

Q. ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 12:06 AM. 
 

Mayor Janice Daniels 
 
 
 
M. Aileen Bittner, CMC 
City Clerk 

 



 
 

 
 
 
January 4, 2012 
 
TO:    The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
   Beth Tashnick, Office Coordinator   
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution #10: Travel Authorization and  
 Approval to Expend Funds for Council Member Travel Expenses –  
 National League of Cities’ 2012 Congressional City Conference 
 
 
The National League of Cities’ 2012 Congressional City Conference is scheduled to take place March 
10 - 14, 2012 in Washington, DC. 
 
A resolution has been provided so that City Council may authorize and approve the expenditure of 
funds on travel expenses for any Council members interested in attending this conference. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BT/bt\AGENDA ITEMS\2012\01.23.12 – Standard Purchasing Resolution #10 – NLC 2012 Congressional City Conference 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

BittnerA
Text Box
J-04a



News Center Events About NLC Ask NLC Search     
2012 Congressional City Conference 
 
The 2012 Congressional City Conference will be held March 10-14 in Washington, D.C. at the Marriott Wardman 
Park hotel. Registration is now open. Agenda information will be posted as available.  

 



 
 

 
 
 
January 4, 2012 
 
TO:    The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
   Beth Tashnick, Office Coordinator  
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution #10: Travel Authorization and  
 Approval to Expend Funds for Council Member Travel Expenses –  
 Michigan Municipal League 2012 Capital Conference 
 
 
The Michigan Municipal League 2012 Capital Conference is scheduled to take place March 20 - 21, 
2012 in Lansing, Michigan. 
 
A resolution has been provided so that City Council may authorize and approve the expenditure of 
funds on travel expenses for any Council members interested in attending this conference. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BT/bt\AGENDA ITEMS\2012\01.23.12 – Standard Purchasing Resolution #10 – MML 2012 Capital Conference 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

BittnerA
Text Box
J-04b



Registration
Speakers/Special 

Events
Agenda Housing/Travel Students Expo/Sponsorships

CAPITAL CONFERENCE 2012: THE POLITICS OF PLACEMAKING

 

Everyone’s talking about the fundamental role of placemaking in the economic revitalization of Michigan’s 
communities. But the economics of place has to start with the politics of place. Without legislation that provides a framework for 
the necessary funding and policies, we can’t move ahead on any of the initiatives that are so crucial to making our communities 
into the vibrant places where people want to live in the 21st century. 

Capital Conference is where you'll hear about key state and federal issues that impact our communities, from the 
development of mass transit to the future fate of brownfield tax credits. 

Take your place in Lansing at the League’s 2012 Capital Conference.  
REGISTRATION OPENS JANUARY 11, 2012!

 

General Sessions include:

Personal Property Tax  
Tying it all Together: Healthcare, EVIP, Labor 
Media Officials Talk Politics 
Transit’s Gaining Momentum

Breakout Sessions include:
Governor’s Environmental Message 
Brownfield Tax Credits: Now What? 
Legislative Ins and Outs

Pre-Conference Sessions Include:

Recreation Authorities and Other Funding for 
Parks & Recreation

Most Common Open Meetings Act and 
Freedom of Information Act Mistakes, and How 
to Avoid Them

Creative Consolidation: The Steps to Success 
in Shared Services

Saving Our Children--The Community's Role in 
Suicide Prevention

Michigan Association of Municipal Attorneys 
(MAMA) 26th Annual Advanced Institute

Plus...

Annual Expo

Regional Roundtables

Community Excellence Award 
Presentations

...and much more! 

 

 

 

 

Capital Conference home mml.org

Capital Conference Blog

 

Stay Connected:  

Conference hashtag: #mmlconf 

 
 

MML Home :: Privacy :: Webmaster  
Michigan Municipal League :: 1675 Green Road, Ann Arbor MI, 48105 :: 734.662.3246 l 800.653.2483 

The League's

Capital Conference

Join the conversation

mattbach Michigan cities to share 
service success stories at 
@mmleague seminar March 20 in 
#Lansing at #mmlconf bit.ly/zlmdmd
@dpgilmartin 
18 hours ago · reply · retweet · favorite 

Page 1 of 1Capital Conference -March 20-21, 2012 - Lansing

1/4/2012http://www.mml.org/events/conference/index.html



Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 
January 3, 2012 
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
   Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
   Samuel P. Lamerato, Superintendent of Fleet Maintenance 

   
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Michigan Intergovernmental Trade Network (MITN) 

Purchasing Cooperative Award – Gasoline and Diesel Fuel   
 
Background    
On November 1, 2011, the City of Sterling Heights obtained six (6) qualifying bids for two-year requirements of 
gasoline and diesel fuel commencing February 1, 2012, on behalf of the MITN cooperative cities that include 
eighteen (18) member communities in Macomb, Oakland, and Wayne Counties.  Through this cooperative bid, 
approximately three million gallons of gasoline and one million gallons of diesel fuel are purchased annually. 
 
The bid is structured so MITN members pay for fuel based on the per gallon wholesale rack average as 
published daily by the Oil Price Information Service (OPIS), plus a delivery fee (bid factor) per gallon.  The City 
of Sterling Heights based the award on the lowest factor quoted per type of fuel delivery plus the OPIS daily 
average for Detroit, Michigan.  The Sterling Heights City Council approved the split award to Petroleum 
Traders, RKA, and Atlas Oil, the lowest bidders meeting specifications on December 6, 2011. 
 
Troy forecasts usage for unleaded gasoline at 161,000 gallons and diesel fuel at 70,000 gallons per year.  It 
should be noted that bid specifications included pricing for biodiesel and ethanol alternative fuel.  Although 
municipal demand for these alternative fuels is presently low, it is anticipated that market conditions may result 
in a greater demand in the future. 
 

Financial Considerations 
Pricing is established by taking the OPIS average, which is a benchmark price used to fix the price of a gallon 
of gas on the day of delivery, and then adding the bid factor. 

Example: OPIS average for unleaded gas on November 22nd   $2.5196 
Bid factor           .0078   
        $2.5274 per gallon 

 Comparative Consumer Retail Price on 11/22/11:  $3.0500 
 
Prices charged to municipalities through the bid will fluctuate based on market conditions, but are considerably 
lower than the consumer pump prices as indicated above.  Since gasoline prices cannot be held firm, this 
method allows both parties to enter into an adjustable contract for a lengthy period of time.  Funds for this 
contract are available in the Motor Pool Operating Budget. 
 
 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

BittnerA
Text Box
J-04c



Page 2 of 2 

January 3, 2012 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: MITN Cooperative Award – Gasoline and Diesel Fuel 
 
 
Policy Considerations 
By aggregating our gasoline consumption with neighboring communities, Troy utilizes economies of scale to 
add value and reduce costs to the City.  
 
Recommendation 
City management recommends the award of the lowest factors to the following acceptable bidders: 
 

Petroleum Traders Corp for Truck Transport Delivery (minimum 5,000 gals) 
TYPE FACTOR  (per gal) OPTIONAL FACTOR  (per gal) 
Unleaded Regular +.0078 Biodiesel B-5 +.0431 
Unleaded Mid-Grade +.0030 Biodiesel B-10 +.0431 
Unleaded Premium +.0025 Biodiesel B-20 +.0431 
ULS Premium Diesel #2 +.0307 E85 Ethanol +.0283 
ULS Diesel #1 +.0168   
ULS Diesel #2 +.0107   
Short Load Charges                                                         $50.00 
Split Order Charge                                                           $40.00 
 
  RKA Petroleum Companies for Truck Transport Delivery (minimum 5,000 gals) 
TYPE FACTOR  (per gal) OPTIONAL FACTOR  (per gal) 
Unleaded Regular +.0102 Biodiesel B-5 +.0167 
Unleaded Mid-Grade +.0210 Biodiesel B-10 (.0027) 
Unleaded Premium +.0363 Biodiesel B-20 (.0198) 
ULS Premium Diesel #2 +.0200 E85 Ethanol N/B 
ULS Diesel #1 +.0168   
ULS Diesel #2 +.0027   
Short Load Charges                                                         $50.00 
Split Order Charge                                                           $35.00 
 
  Atlas Oil Company for Tank Wagon Delivery (less than 5,000 gals) 
TYPE FACTOR  (per gal) OPTIONAL FACTOR  (per gal) 
Unleaded Regular +.1100 ULS Diesel #1 Dyed +.00000 
Unleaded Mid-Grade +.1100 Biodiesel B-5 +.00000 
ULS Premium Diesel #2 +.1100 Biodiesel B-10 +.00000 
ULS Diesel #2 +.1100 Biodiesel B-20 +.00000 
ULS Diesel #2 Dyed +.1100 E85 Ethanol N/B 
Minimum Delivery Qty                                                       200 gallons 
Split Order Charge                                                            $35.00 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\Bid Award 12-13 New Format\Award Standard Purchasing Resolution 4 –Gasoline SH 01.12.doc 























 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

 
 
Date:              December 27, 2011 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Mark F. Miller, Director of Economic and Community Development 
  Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
  Larysa Figol, Sr. Right-of-Way Representative 
 
Subject: Request to Abandon Right of Way and Utility Easements Previously Granted to the City of Troy  
  Sidwell #88-20-14-401-006, Athens Parc Site Condominium 
 
 
 
Background 
 
In 2006 the City of Troy approved plans for the Athens Parc Site Condominium project located in Section 14, 
west of Troy Athens High School on the north side of Rockfield Road. The City of Troy received, accepted 
and recorded a warranty deed for right-of-way and five easements for storm sewer, tree-line preservation, 
drainage, sanitary sewer and public utilities. Subsequently, the development of the project did not materialize 
and the real estate transferred ownership. 
 
The property now has a new owner and developer. In addition to the current parcel, part of an adjacent 
property will be utilized to realign the proposed Apollo Drive in the site condominium project resulting in 
changes to several lot dimensions, thus rendering the existing easements ineffective in providing public 
utilities to the development. 
 
The property owners and developers have asked that interest in the property as previously granted for right-
of-way in L39522 P642 and in the easements recorded in L39547 P696, L39547 P709, L39547 P712, 
L39547 P754 and L39547 P670 be granted back to the property owners. 
 
Once the new road alignment is approved by the City’s Engineering department, the property owners will 
grant new easements and right-of-way to the City of Troy. 
 
Recommendations 
 
Staff recommends that City Council approve the request to abandon the right-of-way granted by warranty 
deed and the five permanent easements for storm sewer, tree-line preservation, drainage, sanitary sewer 
and public utilities. The right-of-way granted in fee and easement interests will be conveyed back to the 
current property owners, David and Linda Purvis, by means of a quit claim deed.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
G:\MEMOS TO MAYOR AND CC\Athens Parc Esmt Abondonment 12-27-11.docx 

BittnerA
Text Box
J-05













































 
 
January 4, 2012                          
 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  William Nelson, Fire Chief 
   David Roberts, Fire Marshal 
 
SUBJECT:  Mon Jin Lau Annual Fireworks Use Request  
 
 
Background:  
 
Mon Jin Lau has once again requested permission to use firecrackers at its annual Lion 
Dance to celebrate Chinese New Year on February 7, 2012. There appear to be no 
changes from previous years’ events. City Council has approved this request in the past. 
 
Financial Considerations:  
 
Mon Jin Lau has submitted the required fireworks permit application and fee to the fire 
department as required by ordinance. 
 
Legal Considerations:  
 
Troy City Code Chapter 93, Fire Prevention, Section 105.6.14.1, requires an operational 
permit for the public display of fireworks. Troy City Code Chapter 93, Fire Prevention, 
Section 3301.1.3, prohibits the use of fireworks unless in compliance with the Michigan 
Fireworks Law. Michigan’s Fireworks Law requires that any person or group that would like 
to conduct a fireworks display must apply to the local unit of government for a permit. The 
law defines local unit of government as the council or commission of a city or village, or the 
township board of a township. The use of firecrackers at this public event is considered to 
be a public display. 

 
Policy Considerations: 
  
The permitting process is consistent with City Council’s goal of enhancing the safety 
of the community. The fire department will conduct an inspection prior to the event to 
ensure code compliance. 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

BittnerA
Text Box
J-06



 

 

1 
 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM

 
Date:             January 9, 2012                
 
 
To:   John Szerlag, City Manager     
  
From:  Nino Licari, City Assessor 
 
 
Subject: Announcement of Public Hearings for Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for 

Tepel Brothers Printing, Inc. at 1725 John R 
 
 
Background 
 
Tepel Brothers Printing, Inc. has submitted an application for tax abatement for their expansion at 
1725 John R.  They intend to spend $2,400,000 and add 10 new jobs to the 96 they currently have in 
Troy. 
 
Recommendation 
 
There is an existing Industrial Development District (IDD) at the site.  State law dictates that City 
Council hold a public hearing for the IFEC.  This memo is the formal notification of the setting of the 
Public Hearing for January 23, 2012. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Nl/nl H:\IFT \Tepel  Bros 2\Memo Announce PH 01.09.12  

BittnerA
Text Box
K-01a



CITY OF TROY 
 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
A Public Hearing will be held by and before the City Council of the City of Troy at City 

Hall, 500 W. Big Beaver, Troy, Michigan on Monday, January 23, 2012  at 7:30 P.M. to 

consider the granting of an Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Tepel 

Brothers Printing, Inc., at the following location: 

 

88-20-26-479-040   1725 John R, Troy, MI.  48083 

T2N, R11E, Section 26 part of John R Gardens Subdivision 

 

You may express your comments regarding this matter by writing to this office, or by 
attending the Public Hearing. 
 
 
                                                                            _____________________________ 
       M. Aileen Bittner, City Clerk 
        
 
NOTICE:  People with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this 
meeting should contact the City Clerk by e-mail at clerk@ci.troy.mi.us or by calling (248) 524-
3317 at least two working days in advance of the meeting.  An attempt will be made to make 
reasonable accommodations. 
 
 
 
 



 
WARREN CONSOL’D SCHOOLS 
Attn:  TOM WALL 
31300 ANITA 
WARREN MI 48093-1697 
 

  
OAKLAND COMMUNITY COLLEGE 
CLARENCE E BRANTLEY   
2480 OPDYKE 
BLOOMFIELD HILLS MI 48304-2266   

 
MACOMB INTERMEDIATE SCHLS  
44001 GARFIELD   
CLINTON TWP  MI 48038-1100 
 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY PTA 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
OAKLAND CO EQUALIZATION 
Attn:  DAVID HIEBER 
250 ELIZABETH LAKE RD 1000 W 
PONTIAC MI 48341 

 
OAKLAND COUNTY ZOO AUTH’Y 
1200 N TELEGRAPH Dept 479 
PONTIAC MI 48341-0479 
 

 
TEPEL BROTHERS PRINTING 
Attn: JAMES TEPEL 
1725 JOHN R 
TROY  MI  48083 
 

 
PARADIGM TAX GROUP 
Attn: ROBERT F FUCHS 
10327 GRAND RIVER STE 403 
BRIGHTON  MI 48116 
 

 
 

   

   

   

   

   

   

 
 
 
 
Formatted for Avery 5160 & 5960 
 

  



 

 
 

RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN 
 

Adopted:  March 3, 2008 
 

 
 

1. APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR PRO TEM ......................................................... 1 

2. DESIGNATION OF ACTING MAYOR ............................................................. 1 

3. SPECIAL MEETINGS ...................................................................................... 1 

4. REGULAR MEETINGS .................................................................................... 2 

5. AGENDA .......................................................................................................... 2 

6. ORDER OF BUSINESS ................................................................................... 2 

7. REGULAR BUSINESS ..................................................................................... 3 

8. CABLE CASTING OF CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS ........................................ 3 

9. MINUTES ......................................................................................................... 3 

10. PROCLAMATIONS .......................................................................................... 4 

11. RECONSIDERATION OF QUESTIONS .......................................................... 4 

12. RESCISSION OF QUESTIONS ....................................................................... 4 

13. PUBLIC HEARING ........................................................................................... 4 

14. CONSENT AGENDA ....................................................................................... 4 

15. APPOINTMENTS ............................................................................................. 4 

15.1 APPOINTMENT OF CITY OF TROY REPRESENTATION TO SEMCOG AND 
SOCRRA ............................................................................................... 5 

16. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND VISITORS ................................................ 6 

17. POSTPONE ..................................................................................................... 6 

18. RULES OF ORDER ......................................................................................... 6 

19. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES ...................................................................... 6 

20. EXPENSES:  OUT-OF-TOWN TRAVEL FOR CITY BUSINESS .................... 6 

21. ABSENCES AT COUNCIL MEETINGS ........................................................... 7 

22. SUSPEND RULES ........................................................................................... 7 

23. COUNCIL DISCUSSION .................................................................................. 7 

24. AGENDA ITEMS SUBMITTED BY COUNCIL MEMBERS: ............................ 7 

25. VIDEO AND AUDIO PRESENTATIONS ......................................................... 7 

26. CONTINUED AGENDA ITEMS NOT CONSIDERED BEFORE 12:00 AM ..... 7 

27. VIOLATIONS .................................................................................................... 7 

28. WIRE COMMUNICATIONS BETWEEN COUNCIL MEMBERS DURING ANY 
MEETING OF COUNCIL ...................................................................... 7 

 

BittnerA
Text Box
L-01a Requested by Mayor Daniels



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 1 
 

Adopted: 03/03/08 

1. APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR PRO TEM 
The selection of Mayor Pro Tem shall proceed in a linear fashion based on seat rotation in the 
following order: Howrylak, Fleming, Beltramini, Eisenbacher, Kerwin, and Broomfield.  

2. DESIGNATION OF ACTING MAYOR 
In the absence or disability of the Mayor and the Mayor Pro Tem, the Council Member 
present who has served longest shall be designated Acting Mayor and shall perform the 
duties of the Mayor. 

3. SPECIAL MEETINGS 
A. CALLING OF SPECIAL MEETINGS: (Pursuant to City Charter Section 4.2) 
 Section 4.2 - Special Meetings: 

Special meetings shall be called by the Clerk on the written request of the 
Mayor, or any two members of the Council on at least twenty-four hours written 
notice to each member of the Council, served personally or left at his usual 
place of residence; but a special meeting may be held on shorter notice if all 
members of the Council are present or have waived notice thereof in writing. 

 
B. DOCUMENTATION: 

Special meetings shall be exclusively limited to items specifically referenced in 
the Call of the Meeting. 
 Special Meeting Posting: Pursuant to City Charter a printed meeting notice for 

each specially called meeting shall contain the items indicated in the written 
notice calling the meeting.   

 Study Session (Special Meeting) Agenda and Posting: Study Session 
Agendas shall contain the items as indicated in the motion calling the meeting.  

 
C. POSTING AND DELIVERY: 

Special Meeting Calling Notice and/or Agenda shall be personally delivered to 
each Council Member and posted for public display at least twenty-four (24) 
hours in advance of the meeting. 

 
D. ORDER OF BUSINESS: 

At each Study Session (Special Meeting) of the Council, the business to be considered 
shall include the items listed and in the following order: 

 

a) Call to Order 
b) Roll Call 
c) Items as Indicated in the Motion Calling of the Meeting 
d) Items Not Indicated in the Motion Call the Meeting, Pursuant to City Charter  
e) See Charter Article 6 Amendments/Additions to Agenda   
f) Public Comment 
g) Adjournment 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 2 
 

Adopted: 03/03/08 

E. AMENDMENTS/ADDITIONS TO AGENDA: 
1. By Charter, special meetings are limited to what is expressly indicated in 

the Call of the Meeting (Motion of Council or written notice, per Charter). 
2. If all members of City Council approve of agenda amendments or additions in 

writing prior to the desired action, then Council can entertain such desired action 
only when all members present at the meeting consent to allow the 
amendment/addition to the agenda. 

4. REGULAR MEETINGS 
Regular meetings shall be held in the Council Chambers at 7:30 P.M. Meeting dates will be 
established, by resolution, prior to the end of the preceding calendar year. 

5. AGENDA 
(a) Regular Meeting Agenda: A printed agenda for each regularly scheduled meeting shall 

be produced at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance of the meeting.  Every item of 
business to come before the Council shall be filed with the City Clerk by noon on the 
Wednesday preceding the Monday on which the Council meets.  It shall be the duty of 
the City Clerk to have delivered, as soon as practical, to each member of the Council a 
complete agenda of the items to be considered at the following meeting.  Each item on 
the agenda shall have sufficient explanation to indicate its intent. All questions 
introduced that do not appear on the agenda will be referred to a later meeting, except 
by suspension of these rules.  A packet, excluding all confidential items, will be posted 
on the City’s Website at least 48 hours prior to Council meetings. 

 
(b) Closed Session Agenda: Where a Closed Session is requested of a pending case, the 

specific name(s) is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (e), even though the specific 
name(s) is not technically required under the Open Meetings Act.  Where a Closed 
Session is requested of any collective bargaining unit, the specific name(s) is to be 
included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (c), even though not technically required under the 
Open Meetings Act.  

6. ORDER OF BUSINESS 
At each regular meeting of the Council, the business to be considered shall be taken up for 
consideration and disposition in the following order: 

 

1. Call to Order 
2. Invocation 
3. Pledge of Allegiance 
4. Roll Call 
5. A. Certificates of Recognition 
6. B. Carryover Items 
7. C.  Public Hearings 
8. D.  Postponed Items 
9. Public Comment – Limited to Items Not on the Agenda in accordance with the Rules 

of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors. 
10. E.  Regular Business 

 Council will move forward all of the “E” items on which members of the audience 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 3 
 

Adopted: 03/03/08 

would like to address City Council, in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of 
the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors.  

11. E.  Regular Business 
 Address Remaining F Items 

12. F.  Consent Agenda 
1. Approval of “F” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
2. Address of “F” Items Removed for Discussion 
 Council will move forward all of the “F” items on which members of the audience 

would like to address City Council, in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of 
the City Council, Article 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors.  

13. G.  Memorandums and Future Council Agenda Items 
14. H.  Council Referrals 

 Items appearing under Council Referrals are items brought forward by the 
Mayor or Council Members before the City Manager’s agenda deadline for 
consideration at the next regular meeting.  

15. I.  Council Comments 
 Items brought forward by Mayor and Council will be placed on the next Regular 

Meeting Agenda for Action. Items appearing under Council Comments are not 
intended for discussion or action at the meeting at which they first appear. 

16. J.  Reports 
 No Public Comment received on “J” Items at this time. 

17. K.  Study Items 
18. Public Comment  
19. L.  Closed Session 
20. Adjournment 

7. REGULAR BUSINESS 
 Persons interested in addressing the City Council on items, which appear on the printed 

Agenda, will be allowed to do so at the time the item is discussed upon recognition by the 
Chair in accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16, during the 
Public Comment section under item 10 “E” of the agenda. Other than asking questions for 
the purposes of gaining insight or clarification, Council shall not interrupt or debate with 
members of the public during their comments. Once discussion is brought back to the 
Council table, persons from the audience will be permitted to speak only by invitation by 
Council, through the Chair.  

8. CABLE CASTING OF CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS 
All City Council Meetings will be broadcast on WTRY, with the exception of Closed meetings 
of City Council. 

9. MINUTES 
a. Minutes: The minutes will be distributed to the Council prior to their approval. The minutes 

will be placed on the Consent Agenda for approval. 
 
b. Closed Session Minutes: Where a Closed Session is requested for discussion of a 

pending case, the specific name(s) is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (e), even 
though the specific name(s) is not technically required under the Open Meetings Act.  



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 4 
 

Adopted: 03/03/08 

Where a Closed Session is requested of any collective bargaining unit, the specific 
name(s) of a collective bargaining unit is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (c), 
even though not technically required under the Open Meetings Act.  

10. PROCLAMATIONS 
Proclamations shall be included in the agenda under Reports and Communications and may 
be brought before Council for consideration by any member. Proclamations will be placed on 
the Consent Agenda for approval. 

11. RECONSIDERATION OF QUESTIONS 
Reconsideration of any vote of the Council may be made by either side of the voted motion 
and shall require the affirmative vote of the majority of the Council Members*. 
Reconsideration of any vote of the Council may further be made by either side of the voted 
motion and shall require the affirmative vote of the majority of the Council Members provided 
that new information has been brought forward. *Charter states “majority of the members 
elect.” 

12. RESCISSION OF QUESTIONS 
Rescission of any vote of the Council shall require the affirmative vote of the majority of the 
Council Members. *Charter states “majority of the members elect.” 

13. PUBLIC HEARING 
Public Hearings will be held after required notice has been provided. Notices shall inform 
recipients of possible continuations of hearings.  The City Council may upon affirmative vote 
of a majority of its members "continue" said hearing at a future date designated in the 
resolution. If the City Council elects to continue the Public Hearing it will appear in the 
designated meeting Agenda under the topic of "Public Hearings".  

14. CONSENT AGENDA 
 The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one 

motion. That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent 
Agenda. Any Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in 
opposition to the recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda and 
have it considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent Agenda 
shall be considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have been 
heard. Public comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda Item 9 
“E”.  

15. APPOINTMENTS 
A. Appointments to Boards, Commissions and Committees: 

 
The Mayor shall, with City Council concurrence, appoint members of Boards or 
Committees as governed by State Statute or local ordinances. 
 
The Mayor Pro Tem will contact incumbents to determine their interest in being nominated 
for reappointment. 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 5 
 

Adopted: 03/03/08 

 
The Mayor or any Council Member desiring to nominate a person for appointment to a 
Board, Commission, or Committee shall at the meeting prior to the appointment, submit 
such name, into nomination. A brief summary of background and personal data as to 
nominee's qualifications should be presented at the time of nomination, except that such a 
resume shall not be required for the re-nomination of a current member, or if the Council 
unanimously agrees that a resume is not necessary. Resumes will be submitted on or 
before the time of nomination. 
 
Nominations will occur during any regular meeting of the Council.  A resolution to 
nominate will be considered during the "Regular Business" of the agenda.  All nominations 
are subject to Section "B" which appears below. 

 
B. Method of Voting on Nominees. 

 
1. Where the number of nominees does not exceed the number of positions to be filled, a 

roll call vote shall be used. 
 
2. Where the number of nominations exceeds the number of positions to be filled, voting 

shall take place by the City Clerk calling the roll of the Council and each Council 
Member is to indicate the names of the individuals he/she wishes to fill the vacancies 

 
3. When no candidate receives a majority vote, the candidate(s) with the least number of 

votes shall be eliminated from the ensuing ballot. 
 
4. No member of the City Council shall serve on any committee, commission or board of 

the City of Troy, except the Retirement System Board of Trustees, unless membership 
is required by Statute or the City Charter. 

 
5. Persons nominated, but not appointed during this process will be sent a letter thanking 

them for their willingness to serve the community. 
 
6. Recognition will be given to persons who have concluded their service to the 

community on Boards and Commissions. 

15.1 APPOINTMENT OF CITY OF TROY REPRESENTATION TO SEMCOG AND 
SOCRRA 
1. SEMCOG (Southeastern Michigan Council of Governments) Representation: The 

Mayor and City Council shall appoint one Delegate and one Alternate to serve on the 
SEMCOG General Assembly for a term of two-years expiring at 7:30 PM on the 
Monday following the Regular City Council Election. The appointments shall be made 
at the organizational meeting of Council at the first Regular meeting of every odd-year 
November.  

 
2. SOCRRA (South Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority) Representation: The 

Mayor and City Council shall appoint one delegate and one alternate to serve on the 
SOCRRA Board for a term of one-year expiring on June 15th.  



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 6 
 

Adopted: 03/03/08 

16. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND VISITORS 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of 
the Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council 
requests that if you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the 
appropriate department(s) whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been 
resolved satisfactorily, you are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, 
and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 

 Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended 
with the majority consent of City Council. 

 Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak not 
more than twice nor longer than five (5) minutes on any item, unless so permitted by the 
Chair. 

 City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority of the City Council 
members. 

 Agenda items that are related to topics where there is significant public input anticipated 
should initiate the scheduling of a Special meeting for that specific purpose. 

 Public Comment may be limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up to 
speak on one topic through a request of the Chair and a majority vote of City Council 
members elect. 

17. POSTPONE  
A motion to postpone may be made for a definite period of time. Items will automatically 
appear on the appropriate agenda. 

18. RULES OF ORDER 
Robert's Rules of Order, Newly Revised 10th Edition, as clarified by the City Clerk, is hereby 
adopted and made a part hereof, except as modified by these Rules of Procedure, the 
Charter, and the City Code. 

19. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES 
Reasonable and necessary expenses incurred in service on behalf of the City shall be paid 
the Mayor and Council, provided that at the end of each month a detailed expense report is 
submitted and approved by the City Council. 

20. EXPENSES:  OUT-OF-TOWN TRAVEL FOR CITY BUSINESS 
A. Funds providing for Council representation at State and National conferences 

sponsored by affiliations of cities will be annually approved in the budget for the subject 
fiscal year. The City Council will by advance resolution grant authorization for out of 
town travel to specific places, for conference purposes. Members of the City Council 
will submit expense vouchers exceeding $50.00 per day to attend out-of-town 
meetings and conferences, with additional allowances being made for transportation 
(paid at the air coach rate or gas mileage at current IRS guidelines, depending upon 
the mode of transportation) and lodging. Expenses may be authorized for payment by 
the City Manager, and a copy of the expense report form will be placed on the Council 
agenda under Reports and Communications. 
 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL 
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 7 
 

Adopted: 03/03/08 

B. Detailed and receipted expenses, not to exceed $150.00, to attend legislative 
committee hearings, legislative meetings, etc., may be authorized for payment by the 
City Manager without prior authorization by the Council, and a copy of the expense 
report form, along with receipts, will be placed on the Council agenda under Reports 
and Communications. 

21. ABSENCES AT COUNCIL MEETINGS 
In the event of an absence of a Council Member at a meeting, the City Manager is directed to 
supply such absent Council Member with information about any special meetings that may 
have been scheduled. 

22. SUSPEND RULES 
The Rules of Procedure may be waived by a simple majority. 

23. COUNCIL DISCUSSION 
No member of Council shall speak a second time on any item under discussion until all other 
members desiring to speak on that item have been heard. No member of Council shall be 
allowed to speak for more than five (5)-minutes at a time. 

24. AGENDA ITEMS SUBMITTED BY COUNCIL MEMBERS: 
Mayor and Council Members submitting an item for a vote shall send the item to the City 
Manager in a timely manner in writing. Staff professional opinion will be written to accompany 
the item for discussion and a vote on the matter. Presentations at the Council table shall be 
limited to 15 minutes. 

25. VIDEO AND AUDIO PRESENTATIONS  
Video and Audio Presentations may not be submitted for presentation at a Council meeting 
unless submitted by 12:00 Noon prior to the meeting. Inappropriate material will be prohibited. 

26. CONTINUED AGENDA ITEMS NOT CONSIDERED BEFORE 12:00 AM 
Any item on the Council agenda that has not been discussed by 12:00 AM of the morning 
following the beginning of the meeting shall be continued to the next regular meeting as a 
Carryover Item, unless City Council takes action to the contrary. 

27. VIOLATIONS 
The City Clerk shall be responsible for reporting violations of time limitations or speaking 
sequence to the Chair. 

28. WIRE COMMUNICATIONS BETWEEN COUNCIL MEMBERS DURING ANY 
MEETING OF COUNCIL 
All communications are subject to the Michigan Open Meetings Act, therefore members of the 
City Council shall not engage in any form of wire communication, as defined by U.S. Code 
Title 18, Part I, Chapter 119, Section 2510, during any meeting of the Council. 

 



BittnerA
Text Box
L-01b Submitted by Mayor Daniels



From: John Szerlag
To: "Djlkslater"
Cc: Aileen Bittner; Lori G Bluhm; Mark F Miller; Cynthia A Stewart; Beth L Tashnick; Dave Henderson; Doug Tietz;

Janice Daniels; Jim Campbell; Maureen McGinnis; Wade Fleming
Subject: RE: Agenda Item L-03
Date: Monday, January 09, 2012 10:47:16 AM

Will do.
 
John
 

From: Djlkslater [mailto:djlkslater@aol.com] 
Sent: Monday, January 09, 2012 10:45 AM
To: John Szerlag
Subject: Agenda Item L-03
 
John,
 
I spoke with Councilman Wade Fleming this morning at 9:15 am.  He told me that he will not be
attending tonight's City Council meeting due to a family emergency.  Please have City Clerk Aileen
Bittner pull my resolution L-03 from the agenda for tonight's meeting.  When I have a date certain of
Councilman Fleming's return, we will ask for a special meeting on this item.  Also, as a result of
conversations with Councilman Fleming, please add his name to resolution L-03 when it is submitted. 
If you have any questions, please give me a call.
 
Dane Slater 

mailto:/O=CITY OF TROY/OU=CITYOFTROY/CN=RECIPIENTS/CN=SZERLAGAJ
mailto:djlkslater@aol.com
mailto:BittnerA@troymi.gov
mailto:BluhmLG@troymi.gov
mailto:MillerMF@troymi.gov
mailto:Cindy.Stewart@troymi.gov
mailto:TashnickBL@troymi.gov
mailto:davehenderson@wideopenwest.com
mailto:doug@dougtietz.com
mailto:janice.daniels@troymi.gov
mailto:jcampbell@futuretool.com
mailto:mmcginnis@dmcginnis.com
mailto:wade.fleming@proforma.com
BittnerA
Text Box
L-03



BittnerA
Text Box
N-02a



















BittnerA
Text Box
N-02b

BittnerA
Text Box





1

TROY MULTI MODAL TRANSIT FACILITY
OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE COST ESTIMATE 

Item Quantity Unit Unit Price Total Cost
1 Building Maintenance and Custodial (based on current city billing history) 2000 SF $3.07 $6,140.00
2 Custodial supplies (based on current city billing history) 2000 SF $0.20 $400.00
3 Mowing (one acre or less) (based on current city billing history) 21 EA $28.00 $588.00
4 Snow and Ice Removal - Parking Lot and Doyle Drive                                                          (65,812 

SF x $3.20 per 1,000 SF = $210.60 per removal) 30 EA $210.60 $6,318.00
5 Snow and Ice Removal - Sidewalks (based on current city billing history)                                                                                  

(13,000 SF x $.01 per SF = $130 per removal x 30/year (No heated Sidewalks) 30 EA $130.00 $3,900.00
6 Electric (based on current city billing history, calibrated to 2,000 sf) 1 Lsum $4,160.00 $4,160.00
7 Gas Utility (based on current city billing history, calibrated to 2,000 sf) 1 Lsum $2,240.00 $2,240.00
8 Elevator Maintenance (based on average annual cost for City's elevators)  2 EA $1,875.00 $3,750.00
9 Relief Valve Testing (based on current city billing history) 2 EA $785.00 $1,570.00
10 Water & Sewer  (based on current city rates) 1 Lsum $300.00 $300.00
11 Window Cleaning (based on current city billing history) 2 EA $1,300.00 $2,600.00

Total Estimated O&M Costs $31,966.00

*  As requested by Council Members Dave Henderson and Doug Tietz.  

Revised - January 4, 2012

BittnerA
Text Box
N-02c



BittnerA
Text Box
N-03a



BittnerA
Text Box
N-03b



BittnerA
Text Box
N-03c



BittnerA
Text Box
N-05





City of Troy’s Snow and Ice 
Control Procedures 

 
Background 
Snow and ice that accumulates on road and sidewalk surfaces create hazardous 
conditions for motorists and pedestrians.  Because these conditions surpass a safety 
threshold, snow and ice accumulation creates an emergency situation requiring the city 
to respond accordingly.  These emergency situations require thoughtful planning 
because of the required staff overtime and the unpredictability of winter weather.  Winter 
snow storms become unpredictable because of various accumulations, moisture 
content of the snow, ambient and wind chill temperatures, timing, duration, and wind 
direction and velocity.  These factors suggest that no two storms are identical, creating 
a unique plan to mitigate the hazardous conditions for each individual snow storm. 
 
The City of Troy will implement a developed plan to mitigate the hazards created by 
accumulating snow and ice on road and sidewalk surfaces.  Mitigation efforts shall 
include but are not exclusive to plowing and/or salting of road and sidewalk surfaces.  
Conditions may require the use of special abrasives, ice cutting equipment, and/or 
special chemical treatment to the road and sidewalk surfaces. 
 
Goals and Objectives 
The City of Troy’s goal is to abate the hazardous conditions created from snow and ice 
accumulation on major roads, City operated facilities, secondary roads, and City 
maintained sidewalks.  Motorist and pedestrians should continue to use caution while 
operating and functioning on roads and sidewalks during the winter months because of 
the potential hazards created by snow, ice, wind, and freezing temperatures.  
 
The City of Troy will develop and implement a plan in attempts to make streets 
accessible for vehicles properly equipped for winter driving conditions during and after 
each storm, in accordance with the guidelines set herein.  This plan includes attempts to 
clear all primary routes to bare pavement within twelve (12) hours from the end of the 
snow storm, designated as Priority “A”.   Secondary routes may be snow packed but 
passable during and after snow storms with less than four (4) inches of accumulation.  
When accumulations exceed four (4) inches from a single snow storm and weather 
forecasts suggest continual freezing temperatures, the City of Troy will begin plowing 
subdivision streets, designated Priority “E”.  The subdivision streets have a completion 
objective of 24 hours from the time the snow stops when the accumulation range is from 
four (4) to eight (8) inches.  This completion objective increases to 36 hours when snow 
accumulation ranges between eight (8) to twelve (12) inches, and a completion 
objective of 48 hours when accumulations exceed twelve (12) inches.  This objective 
will result in removed snow accumulating on areas adjacent to roads creating additional 
sight hazards for motorists and pedestrians.  These objectives will also likely leave 
areas where pavement is not bare because of snow pack.  The City of Troy advises 
continued caution to motorists and pedestrians during these conditions.  
 
The City of Troy will implement the developed plan using in-house resources and 
contractors to mitigate snow and ice hazards at city owned facilities including parking 
lots and sidewalks during and after a winter snow storm, designated Priority “D”.  The 
developed plan will include maintaining access to parking lots and facilities to abate 

BittnerA
Text Box
N-06



hazards during facility operating hours. During facility non-operating hours the available 
resources will clear parking lots and sidewalks to bare pavement once the snow storm 
has stopped.  The City of Troy has developed an objective to have parking lots and 
sidewalks clear within twelve (12) hours of the snow stopping.  The City of Troy advises 
participants to take additional caution during facility operating hours because of the 
inability to clear parking lots and sidewalks completely. 
 
Hills, intersections, and curves (HIC’s) require additional hazard mitigation when 
conditions are present.  The City of Troy has predetermined these areas as special 
caution areas, designated Priority “E”. 
 
The City of Troy will plow gravel roads only and when necessary apply a liquid deicer in 
efforts to abate hazards, designated Priority “E”.  Motorist and pedestrians should 
expect to have snow pack on the gravel roads and not plowed to bare gravel.  Motorist 
and pedestrians should exercise caution during and after snow storms when traveling 
on gravel roads.  
 
The City of Troy Parks and Streets Division determine the priority and level of service 
for each area. 

Department of Public Works Priority List 

   Priority "A" Major City and County Roads Primary 
Priority "B" City Industrial Roads Primary 
Priority "C"  School Entry Roads Primary 

Priority "D" City Hall, Fire Stations, Community Center, 
Library, Nature Center, Museum, Camp Ti 

Primary 

Priority "E" City Local Roads (Subdivision Roads), Hills, 
Intersections, Curves 

Secondary 

Priority "F" City and DDA Sidewalks, Parks, Cemeteries Tertiary 
 
The City of Troy will accomplish these goals and objectives using the available 
resources and implementing a unique plan to each snow and ice event.  The 
sophisticated snow and ice removal operation will mitigate hazardous conditions 
following the outlined priority list.  The City of Troy recognizes the demand for an 
efficient and effective operation and will deploy the necessary resources indicative of 
the snow storm, which can range from one individual and one truck to a combination of 
city and contractor equipment totaling over fifty-seven (57) individuals and over forty-
nine (49) pieces of equipment.  
 
General Snow and Ice Procedures 
Departments will receive notification of an impending and/or occurring snow and ice 
event predicted to or causing hazardous conditions on city streets, parking lots, and/or 
sidewalks.  The City of Troy will develop a unique plan and implement the procedures 
set forth herein to mitigate hazardous conditions created by snow and ice. 
 
Property owners abutting roads receiving snow plowing can expect to have windrows of 
snow encroach his or her driveway approaches and sidewalk ramp approaches of 
various accumulation, depending on the characteristics of the snow and location.  This 



is normal of any City plowing operation.  Plow truck operators will be cognizant of where 
snow is pushed and attempt to avoid excessive amounts of snow and ice to driveway 
and sidewalk approaches.  
 
 
 
Local Streets Priority Plowing 
Specific sections of the City of Troy require expedient service because of road 
topography.  The City of Troy has predetermined these sections to receive subdivision 
plowing first when accumulations exceed four (4) inches and weather conditions 
suggest continual freezing temperatures.  These sections include section 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 
17, and 18. The City of Troy will provide snow and ice removal to the remaining sections 
by rotating which section receives this service first.  Areas that receive excess snow 
accumulation from plowing operations that cause additional hazards, such as sight 
distance obstructions at intersections will receive additional attention after all streets are 
abated of hazards created by snow and ice. 
 
Snow and Ice Control Materials 
Commonly used products by the City of Troy to mitigate hazardous conditions created 
by snow and ice include salt and deicing agents.  A large salt dome at the Department 
of Public Works facility stores the salt and the deicing agent is stored in a large above 
ground storage container. The Michigan Department of Environmental Quality regulates 
these storage units and both are compliant.  
 
After every snow and ice control operation the salt and deicing agent is inventoried and 
replenished as necessary.  To minimize the storage of these products during non-winter 
months, The City of Troy allows inventory to decrease without reordering towards the 
end of the winter season.  
 
Combining salt and deicing agents maximize their effectiveness on snow and ice.  An 
automated system on the salt trucks applies the deicing agent to the salt, which 
provides lower temperature melting abilities and reduces the bounce and scatter of the 
salt.  The City of Troy will use the deicing agent as a preventative measure before a 
snow and ice event to hazardous areas such as bridge decks and hills.  In addition to 
these materials, the City of Troy may use additives such as corrosion inhibitors and anti-
caking agents when appropriate.   
 
No Salt Zones 
Specific storm drains flow directly to lakes within the City of Troy creating the necessity 
to deem areas “No Salt Zones”.  This effort is to minimize the environmental impact salt 
can have to waterways such as lakes.  These areas will receiving snow plowing but only 
receive deicing alternatives such as natural brine or sand when necessary.  Because of 
these reasons, achieving bare pavement is unlikely during the winter months and 
requires motorists and pedestrians to use additional caution while traveling on these 
roads.  
  
These streets include; Alfred, Atkins, Chancer, Crescent Way, Diane, Donegal, Dublin 
Fair, Edith, Emerald Lake, Emerald Shores, Erin Way, Galloway Bay, Jandale, 
Killarney, Lake Charnwood, Lakeside, Limerick, Little Creek, Lyster, Northpoint, 



Sandshores, Sandy Point, Shoreline, Smallbrook, Southpointe, Three Lakes, Walker, 
and Westlake 
 
Department and Personnel Responsibilities 
The Department of Public Works and its designee will receive notification from the Troy 
Police Department when impending safety threshold of city roads and facilities is in 
jeopardy from snow and ice conditions during non-regular operating hours.  During 
normal operating hours, the Department of Public Works’ staff will monitor the safety 
threshold of city roads and facilities. The Department of Public Works will receive 
specific concerns of hazardous conditions at                248.524.3392 during normal 
working days and hours.  Staff will determine the intensity of each snow storm and 
dispatch crews appropriately to ensure an effective and efficient operation.  
 
Snow storms are divided into twelve (12) hour shifts and personnel assigned to these 
shifts will rotate shifts until the mitigation of the hazardous condition is achieved.  The 
City of Troy will use qualified personnel from all departments in efforts to abate hazards 
in an efficient and effective operation.  This operation is ready for deployment 24-hours 
a day, 7 days a week. 
 
• Public Works Director - The Director’s primary responsibility is to facilitate all snow 

and ice removal operations between the involved departments.  This position also 
ensures efficient and effective operations to mitigate hazardous conditions created 
by snow and ice. The Director will communicate operational progress to the City 
Manager and/or his or her designee.  

 
• Superintendent of Parks, Streets, and Drains - Under the direction of the Public 

Works Director, the Superintendent’s responsibilities include the development and 
implementation of the hazardous condition mitigation operation created by snow and 
ice.  This includes determining and deploying available resources, which include City 
of Troy employees and equipment from other departments, and contracted firms.  In 
the absence of the Public Works Director, the Superintendent of Parks, Streets, and 
Drains assumes the authority of the Director and will act as his or her designee. 

 
• Superintendent of Fleet Maintenance - Under the direction of the Public Works 

Director, the Superintendent’s responsibilities include mobilization of the necessary 
resources to abate hazardous conditions created from snow and ice.  This includes 
ensuring personnel are available to maintain the necessary equipment before and 
during a snow and ice event.  He or she will provide an updated equipment status 
list to the Director during a snow storm. 
 

• Public Works Office Coordinator - Under the direction of the Public Works 
Director, the Office Coordinator’s responsibilities includes receiving public 
communication and transferring this communication to the appropriate 
department(s).  These departments include the Manager’s Office, Community Affairs 
Department, Police Department, and Fire Department. The Office Coordinator will 
communicate the operation’s status at 8 am, 12 noon, 4 pm, and other intervals 
deemed necessary by the Public Works Director, which includes updating the Audex 
Message System for the public. 

 
Mutual Aid Agreement 



The Road Commission for Oakland County maintains the state owned I-75 Interstate.  
The Troy Police Department may request addition maintenance by City of Troy crews 
on the interstate if necessary.  These requested operations include plowing and/or 
salting of on and off ramps and/or other specific sections of the interstate.  
 
Emergency Requests 
The City of Troy provides the Police Department with the authority to request additional 
snow and ice control for medical or fire emergencies.  These requests will follow the 
standard communication guidelines provided in “Department and Personnel 
Responsibilities.”  The Police Department will provide the exact location and/or route 
that require additional service for proper personnel and equipment dispatch.  
 
The City of Troy Police Department will evaluate special individual request from 
residents to provide an additional or elevated service to lessen hazardous conditions 
created from snow and ice.  These requests include resident’s request to have his or 
her subdivision street mitigated of hazards created by snow and ice for medical in-home 
services or regular medical visits.  The City of Troy Department of Public Works will act 
only on these types of requests from the Troy Police Department.  
 
Assistance to Private Property 
The City of Troy prohibits its employees from using City of Troy equipment to push, pull, 
or tow a standard private vehicle.  City of Troy employees will assist the motorist if a 
hazardous situation exists by calling the Troy Police Department by radio.  The City of 
Troy prohibits its employees from using City of Troy equipment to remove snow and/or 
ice from private property. 
 
Property Damage 
Unintentional damage may occur to public and private property during snow and ice 
removal operations.  The City of Troy will follow the listed guidelines for repairing said 
damaged property. 
 

Right-of-Way 
• The City of Troy will provide turf restoration when weather permits. 
• Whenever possible the City of Troy will attempt to repair the turf area with the 

existing turf if it is rolled or flipped by a plow.  
• If the damaged turf area is less than nine (9) inches wide the City of Troy will 

provide topsoil and seed to the damaged area. 
• If the damaged turf area is greater than nine (9) inches wide the City of Troy 

will provide sod to the damaged area. 
 Mailbox Damage 

• The City of Troy will replace mailboxes when ground conditions permit. 
• The City of Troy will place a temporary mailbox if ground conditions do not 

permit a permanent repair. 
• The City of Troy will replace a damaged standard mailbox caused by the City 

of Troy’s snow removal operation with a standard generic mailbox at no cost 
to the property owner. 

• The City of Troy will offer property owners with damaged standard mailboxes 
to upgrade to a Rubber Maid mailbox including a 4”x6” wood post. 

• The City of Troy will reimburse owners of designer mailboxes to a maximum 
of $250.00, which requires cost verification by an original receipt.  



 
Required Certifications 
City of Troy equipment operators are required to obtain and keep current a Commercial 
Drivers License (CDL) through the State of Michigan.  The City of Troy enforces State of 
Michigan regulations that require all CDL drivers to maintain an up-to-date medical 
certification and comply with all other regulations. 
 
Departure from Procedure 
The general procedures and guidelines presented herein do not predict every 
circumstance regarding snow and ice control.  The intent of these general procedures 
and guidelines is to provide snow and ice removal operations to abate hazardous 
conditions.  Therefore, unexpected circumstances may require the City of Troy to 
deviate from the presented general procedures and guidelines.  The City of Troy’s City 
Manager and/or the Public Works Director and/or his or her designee has the authority 
to deviate from these general procedures and guidelines to meet the intent of mitigating 
a hazard caused by snow and ice.    
 
(Updated December 2011)  



BittnerA
Text Box
N-07



BittnerA
Text Box
N-08





 

 

 

 
 

RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN 
 

Adopted: November 8, 2010 
 

 
 

1. APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR PRO TEM ......................................................... 1 
2. DESIGNATION OF ACTING MAYOR ............................................................. 1 
3. SPECIAL MEETINGS ...................................................................................... 1 
4. REGULAR MEETINGS .................................................................................... 2 
5. AGENDA .......................................................................................................... 2 
6. ORDER OF BUSINESS ................................................................................... 2 
7. CABLE CASTING OF CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS ........................................ 3 
8. MINUTES ......................................................................................................... 3 
9. PROCLAMATIONS .......................................................................................... 3 
10. RECONSIDERATION OF QUESTIONS .......................................................... 3 
11. RESCISSION OF QUESTIONS ....................................................................... 3 
12. WITHDRAWAL OF MOTIONS PRIOR TO VOTING ....................................... 4 
13. PUBLIC HEARING ........................................................................................... 4 
14. CONSENT AGENDA ....................................................................................... 4 
15. APPOINTMENTS ............................................................................................. 4 
15.1 APPOINTMENT OF CITY OF TROY REPRESENTATION TO SEMCOG AND 

SOCRRA .......................................................................................................... 5 
16. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND VISITORS ................................................ 5 
17. POSTPONE ..................................................................................................... 6 
18. RULES OF ORDER ......................................................................................... 6 
19. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES ...................................................................... 6 
20. EXPENSES: OUT-OF-TOWN TRAVEL FOR CITY BUSINESS ..................... 6 
21. ABSENCES AT COUNCIL MEETINGS ........................................................... 6 
22. SUSPEND RULES ........................................................................................... 6 
23. COUNCIL DISCUSSION .................................................................................. 6 
24. AGENDA ITEMS SUBMITTED BY COUNCIL MEMBERS ............................. 7 
25. VIDEO AND AUDIO PRESENTATIONS ......................................................... 7 
26. CONTINUED AGENDA ITEMS NOT CONSIDERED BEFORE 12:00 AM ..... 7 
27. VIOLATIONS .................................................................................................... 7 
28. WIRE COMMUNICATIONS BY AND TO COUNCIL MEMBERS DURING ANY 

MEETING OF COUNCIL .................................................................................. 7 
 

BittnerA
Text Box
O-01aCurrent Rules



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 1 
 

Adopted: 11/08/2010 

1. APPOINTMENT OF MAYOR PRO TEM 
The Mayor Pro Tem shall be elected by the Council from among its members, annually in 
November. 

2. DESIGNATION OF ACTING MAYOR 
In the absence or disability of the Mayor and the Mayor Pro Tem, the Council Member 
present who has served longest shall be designated Acting Mayor and shall perform the 
duties of the Mayor. 

3. SPECIAL MEETINGS 
A. CALLING OF SPECIAL MEETINGS (Pursuant to City Charter Section 4.2): 

Special meetings shall be called by the Clerk on the written request of the Mayor, 
or any two members of the Council on at least twenty-four hours written notice to 
each member of the Council, served personally or left at his usual place of 
residence; but a special meeting may be held on shorter notice if all members of 
the Council are present or have waived notice thereof in writing. 

 
B. DOCUMENTATION: 

Special meetings shall be exclusively limited to items specifically referenced in the 
Call of the Meeting. 
• Special Meeting Posting: Pursuant to City Charter a printed meeting notice for each 

specially called meeting shall contain the items indicated in the written notice calling 
the meeting.  

• Study Session (Special Meeting) Agenda and Posting: Study Session Agendas 
shall contain the items as indicated in the motion calling the meeting.  

 
C. POSTING AND DELIVERY: 

Special Meeting Calling Notice and/or Agenda shall be personally delivered to each 
Council Member and posted for public display at least twenty-four (24) hours in 
advance of the meeting. 

 
D. ORDER OF BUSINESS: 

At each Study Session (Special Meeting) of the Council, the business to be considered 
shall include the items listed and in the following order: 

 
A. Call to Order 
B. Roll Call: 

1) Listing of Council Members 
2) Excuse Absent Council Members pursuant to Rule Number 21. 

C. Items as Indicated in the Motion Calling of the Meeting 
D. Items Not Indicated in the Motion Call the Meeting (Pursuant to City Charter 

Sections 4.2 and 4.3): 
1) Special meetings are limited to what is expressly indicated in the Call of the 

Meeting (Motion of Council or written notice). 
 
 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 2 
 

Adopted: 11/08/2010 

2) If all members of City Council approve of agenda amendments or additions in 
writing prior to the desired action, then Council can entertain such desired action 
only when all members present at the meeting consent to allow the 
amendment/addition to the agenda. 

E. Public Comment 
F.  Adjournment 

4. REGULAR MEETINGS 
Regular meetings shall be held in the Council Chambers at 7:30 P.M. Meeting dates will be 
established, by resolution, prior to the end of the preceding calendar year. 

5. AGENDA 
A. Regular Meeting Agenda: A printed agenda for each regularly scheduled meeting shall 

be produced at least forty-eight (48) hours in advance of the meeting. Every item of 
business to come before the Council shall be filed with the City Clerk by noon on the 
Wednesday preceding the Monday on which the Council meets. It shall be the duty of 
the City Clerk to have delivered, as soon as practical, to each member of the Council a 
complete agenda of the items to be considered at the following meeting. Each item on 
the agenda shall have sufficient explanation to indicate its intent. All questions 
introduced that do not appear on the agenda will be referred to a later meeting, except 
by suspension of these rules. A packet, excluding all confidential items, will be posted 
on the City’s Website at least 48 hours prior to Council meetings. 
 

B. Closed Session Agenda: Where a Closed Session is requested of a pending case, the 
specific name(s) is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (e), even though the specific 
name(s) is not technically required under the Open Meetings Act. Where a Closed 
Session is requested for any collective bargaining unit, the specific name(s) is to be 
included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (c), even though not technically required under the 
Open Meetings Act.  

6. ORDER OF BUSINESS 
At each Regular meeting of the Council, the business to be considered shall be taken up for 
consideration and disposition in the following order: 
 
Invocation 
Pledge of Allegiance 
A. Call to Order 
B. Roll Call 

1) Listing of Council Members 
2) Excuse Absent Council Members pursuant to Rule Number 21 

C. Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations 
D. Carryover Items 
E. Public Hearings 
F. Public Comment – In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Rule 

Number 16 - Members of the Public and Visitors 
G. Response/Reply to Public Comment  
H. Postponed Items 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 3 
 

Adopted: 11/08/2010 

I.  Regular Business 
J.  Consent Agenda 

1) Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
2) Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion 

K.  Memorandums and Future Council Agenda Items 
L.  Council Referrals - Items appearing under Council Referrals are items brought forward 

by the Mayor or Council Members before the City Manager’s agenda deadline for 
consideration at the next regular meeting.  

M.  Council Comments - Items brought forward by Mayor and Council will be placed on the 
next Regular Meeting Agenda for Action. Items appearing under Council Comments are 
not intended for discussion or action at the meeting at which they first appear. 

N.  Reports 
O.  Study Items 
P.  Closed Session 
Q.  Adjournment 

7. CABLE CASTING OF CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS 
All City Council Meetings will be broadcast on WTRY, with the exception of Closed sessions 
and Council retreats. 

8. MINUTES 
A. Minutes: The minutes will be distributed to the Council prior to their approval. The 

minutes will be placed on the Consent Agenda for approval. 
B. Closed Session Minutes: Where a Closed Session is requested for discussion of a 

pending case, the specific name(s) is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (e), even 
though the specific name(s) is not technically required under the Open Meetings Act. 
Where a Closed Session is requested of for any collective bargaining unit, the specific 
name(s) of a collective bargaining unit is to be included pursuant to MCL 15.268 (c), 
even though not technically required under the Open Meetings Act.  

9. PROCLAMATIONS 
Proclamations shall be included in the agenda under Reports and Communications and may 
be brought before Council for consideration by any member. Proclamations will be placed on 
the Consent Agenda for approval. 

10. RECONSIDERATION OF QUESTIONS 
Reconsideration of any vote of the Council may be made by either side of the voted motion 
and shall require the affirmative vote of the majority of the Council Members*. 
Reconsideration of any vote of the Council may further be made by either side of the voted 
motion and shall require the affirmative vote of the majority of the Council Members provided 
that new information has been brought forward. *Charter states “majority of the members 
elect.” 

11. RESCISSION OF QUESTIONS 
Rescission of any vote of the Council shall require the affirmative vote of the majority of the 
Council Members. *Charter states “majority of the members elect.” 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 4 
 

Adopted: 11/08/2010 

12. WITHDRAWAL OF MOTIONS PRIOR TO VOTING  
Any motion may be withdrawn by its maker. A motion to withdraw must receive a second and 
the affirmative vote of the majority of the Council Members present.  

13. PUBLIC HEARING 
Public Hearings will be held after required notice has been provided. Notices shall inform 
recipients of possible continuations of hearings. The City Council may upon affirmative vote of 
a majority of its members "continue" said hearing at a future date designated in the resolution. 
If the City Council elects to continue the Public Hearing it will appear in the designated 
meeting Agenda under the topic of "Public Hearings".  

14. CONSENT AGENDA 
The Consent Agenda includes items of a routine nature and will be approved with one motion. 
That motion will approve the recommended action for each item on the Consent Agenda. Any 
Council Member may ask a question regarding an item as well as speak in opposition to the 
recommended action by removing an item from the Consent Agenda and have having it 
considered as a separate item. Any item so removed from the Consent Agenda shall be 
considered after other items on the consent portion of the agenda have been heard. Public 
comment on Consent Agenda Items will be permitted under Agenda Item F.  

15. APPOINTMENTS 
A. Appointments to Boards, Commissions and Committees: 

 
The Mayor shall, with City Council concurrence, appoint members of Boards or 
Committees as governed by State Statute or local ordinances. 
 
The Mayor Pro Tem will contact incumbents to determine their interest in being nominated 
for reappointment. 
 
The Mayor or any Council Member desiring to nominate a person for appointment to a 
Board, Commission, or Committee shall at the meeting prior to the appointment, submit 
such name, for nomination. A brief summary of background and personal data as to 
nominee's qualifications should be presented at the time of nomination, except that such a 
resume shall not be required for the re-nomination of a current member, or if the Council 
unanimously agrees that a resume is not necessary. Resumes will be submitted on or 
before the time of nomination. 
 
Nominations will occur during any regular meeting of the Council. A resolution to nominate 
will be considered during the "Regular Business" of the agenda. All nominations are 
subject to Section "B" which appears below. 

 
B. Method of Voting on Nominees: 

 
1) Where the number of nominees does not exceed the number of positions to be filled, a roll 

call vote shall be used. 
2) Where the number of nominations exceeds the number of positions to be filled, voting shall 

take place by the City Clerk calling the roll of the Council and each Council Member is to 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 5 
 

Adopted: 11/08/2010 

indicate the names of the individuals he/she wishes to fill the vacancies 
3) When no candidate receives a majority vote, the candidate(s) with the least number of votes 

shall be eliminated from the ensuing ballot. 
4) No member of the City Council shall serve on any committee, commission or board of the City 

of Troy, except the Retirement System Board of Trustees, Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan 
and Trust Board, and the Local Development Finance Authority (LDFA) unless membership is 
required by Statute or the City Charter. 

5) Persons nominated, but not appointed during this process will be sent a letter thanking them 
for their willingness to serve the community. 

6) Recognition will be given to persons who have concluded their service to the community on 
Boards and Commissions. 

15.1 APPOINTMENT OF CITY OF TROY REPRESENTATION TO SEMCOG AND 
SOCRRA 
SEMCOG (Southeastern Michigan Council of Governments) Representation: The 
Mayor and City Council shall appoint one Delegate and one Alternate to serve on the 
SEMCOG General Assembly for a term of two-years expiring at 7:30 PM on the Monday 
following the Regular City Council Election. The appointments shall be made at the 
organizational meeting of Council at the first Regular meeting of every odd-year 
November. 
 
SOCRRA (South Oakland County Resource Recovery Authority) Representation: 
The Mayor and City Council shall appoint one delegate and one alternate to serve on 
the SOCRRA Board for a term of one-year expiring on June 15th.  

16. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND VISITORS 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of the 
Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. NOTE TO THE PUBLIC: 
City Council requests that if you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of 
the appropriate department(s) whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been 
resolved satisfactorily, you are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, and 
if still not resolved satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended 

with the majority consent of City Council. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to 

five (5) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up to 

five (5) minutes to address Postponed, Regular Business or Consent Agenda items or any 
other item as permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment portion 
of the agenda. 

• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority of the City Council 
members. 

• Agenda items that are related to topics where there is significant public input anticipated 
should initiate the scheduling of a Special meeting for that specific purpose. 

• Through a request of the Chair and a majority vote of City Council, public Comment may 
be limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up to speak either on a Public 
Hearing item or for the Public Comment period of the agenda. 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 6 
 

Adopted: 11/08/2010 

17. POSTPONE  
A motion to postpone may be made for a definite period of time. Items will automatically 
appear on the appropriate agenda. 

18. RULES OF ORDER 
Robert's Rules of Order, current edition, as clarified by the City Clerk, is hereby adopted and 
made a part hereof, except as modified by these Rules of Procedure, the Charter, and the 
City Code. 

19. MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES 
Reasonable and necessary expenses incurred in service on behalf of the City shall be paid 
the Mayor and Council, provided that at the end of each month a detailed expense report is 
submitted and approved by the City Council. 

20. EXPENSES: OUT-OF-TOWN TRAVEL FOR CITY BUSINESS 
A. Funds providing for Council representation at State and National conferences sponsored 

by affiliations of cities will be annually approved in the budget for the subject fiscal year. 
The City Council will by advance resolution grant authorization for out of town travel to 
specific places, for conference purposes. Members of the City Council will submit 
expense vouchers exceeding $50.00 per day to attend out-of-town meetings and 
conferences, with additional allowances being made for transportation (paid at the air 
coach rate, City pool car, City Vehicle rental rate, or gas mileage at current IRS 
guidelines, depending upon the mode of transportation) and lodging. Expenses may be 
authorized for payment by the City Manager, and a copy of the expense report form will 
be placed on the Council agenda under Reports and Communications. 

 
B. Detailed and receipted expenses, not to exceed $150.00, to attend legislative committee 

hearings, legislative meetings, etc., may be authorized for payment by the City Manager 
without prior authorization by the Council, and a copy of the expense report form, along 
with receipts, will be placed on the Council agenda under Reports and Communications. 

21. ABSENCES AT COUNCIL MEETINGS 
A.  Council members who are unable to attend a Council meeting and desire an  excused 
 absence shall notify the City Manager, City Attorney and City Clerk of their absence in 
  writing prior to the meeting and indicate the reason for the absence. The reason 
 shall be entered in the proceedings of the Council at the time of each  absence. 
 
B.  In the event of an absence of a Council member at a meeting, the City Manager is 

directed to supply such absent Council member with information about any special 
meetings that may have been scheduled. 

22. SUSPEND RULES 
The Rules of Procedure may be waived by a simple majority. 

23. COUNCIL DISCUSSION 
No member of Council shall speak a second time on any item under discussion until all other 



RULES OF PROCEDURE FOR THE CITY COUNCIL  
CITY OF TROY, MICHIGAN         Page 7 
 

Adopted: 11/08/2010 

members desiring to speak on that item have been heard. No member of Council shall be 
allowed to speak for more than five (5) minutes at a time. 

24. AGENDA ITEMS SUBMITTED BY COUNCIL MEMBERS 
Mayor and Council Members submitting an item for a vote shall send the item to the City 
Manager in a timely manner in writing. Staff professional opinion will be written to accompany 
the item for discussion and a vote on the matter. Presentations at the Council table shall be 
limited to 15 minutes. 

25. VIDEO AND AUDIO PRESENTATIONS  
Video and Audio Presentations may not be submitted for presentation at a Council meeting 
unless submitted by 12:00 Noon on the day of the meeting. Inappropriate material will be 
prohibited. 

26. CONTINUED AGENDA ITEMS NOT CONSIDERED BEFORE 12:00 AM 
Any item on the Council agenda that has not been discussed by 12:00 AM of the morning 
following the beginning of the meeting shall be continued to the next regular meeting as a 
Carryover Item, unless City Council takes action to the contrary. 

27. VIOLATIONS 
The City Clerk shall be responsible for reporting violations of time limitations or speaking 
sequence to the Chair. 

28. WIRE COMMUNICATIONS BY AND TO COUNCIL MEMBERS DURING ANY 
MEETING OF COUNCIL 
All communications are subject to the Michigan Open Meetings Act, therefore members of the 
City Council shall not engage in any form of wire communication, as defined by U.S. Code 
Title 18, Part I, Chapter 119, Section 2510, during any meeting of the Council. 


	20120109 Agenda.pdf
	AGENDA: January 9, 2012
	COVER LETTER:
	VISION STATEMENT & GOALS:
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET:
	A. CALL TO ORDER:
	B. ROLL CALL:
	C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION AND SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS:
	C-1 Certificates of Recognition and Special Presentations
	a) Proclamation of Appreciation to Meritor, Inc. for Generous Donation to Troy Public Library


	D. CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	E. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 Public Hearing to Receive Public Input on the City of Royal Oak Hospital Finance Authority Utilizing Tax-Exempt Bonds for William Beaumont Hospital - Troy

	F. PUBLIC COMMENT:
	G. RESPONSE / REPLY TO PUBLIC COMMENT
	H. POSTPONED ITEMS:
	H-1  No Postponed Items

	I.  REGULAR BUSINESS:
	I-1 Board and Committee Appointments: None Scheduled
	I-2 Board and Committee Nominations: None Scheduled
	I-3 Closed Session to Discuss T.R. Pieprzak v Troy
	I-4 Wireless Devices (Smartphones) and Service Plans US General Services Administration (GSA) Contract GS-35F-0119P
	I-5 Acceptance of the 2011 Assistance to Firefighters Grant
	I-6 Postponement of the Hearing for the Revocation of a Massage Facility License – Recovery Spa, Inc. – 1975 E. Maple Rd.

	J.  CONSENT AGENDA:
	J-1a Approval of “J” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	J-1b  Address of “J” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	J-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	a) Regular City Council Meeting of December 19, 2011

	J-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:
	J-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution #10: Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend Funds for Council Member Travel Expenses – National League of Cities’ 2012 Congressional City Conference
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution #10: Travel Authorization and Approval to Expend Funds for Council Member Travel Expenses – Michigan Municipal League 2012 Capital Conference
	c) Standard Purchasing Resolution #4: Michigan Intergovernmental Trade Network (MITN) Purchasing Cooperative Award – Gasoline and Diesel Fuel

	J-5 Request to Abandon Right of Way and Utility Easements Previously Granted to the City of Troy – Sidwell #88-20-14-401-006, Athens Parc Site Condominium
	J-6 Mon Jin Lau Annual Fireworks Use Request

	K. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	K-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:
	a) Announcement of Public Hearing for Industrial Facilities Exemption Certificate (IFEC) for Tepel Brothers Printing, Inc. at 1725 John R – January 23, 2012

	K-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at  some future point in time): None Submitted

	L. COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	L-1  Mayor Daniels Referrals Regarding City Council Rules of Procedure
	a) 2008-2009 City Council Rules of Procedure
	b) Recommended Rules of Procedures - Changes Outline

	L-2  Mayor Daniels Requested Discussion Regarding the Creation of a Suicide Prevention Program Involving the City of Troy, City Council, City Management, Troy Youth Assistance, Troy School District and Perspectives of Troy
	L-3  Council Member Slater Submitted Resolution for Approval of MDOT Sub-Contract with Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. at a Reduced Amount for Architect & Engineering Services for the Final Design of the Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility Not to Exceed $6....

	M. COUNCIL COMMENTS
	M-1   No Council Comments Advanced

	N. REPORTS
	N-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: None Submitted
	N-2 Department Reports:
	a) 2011 Fourth Quarter Litigation Report
	b) Michigan Municipal Risk Management Authority (MMRMA) – Risk Avoidance Program (RAP) Grant
	c) Troy Multi-Modal Transit Facility, Operation and Maintenance Cost Estimate as Requested by Council Members Henderson and Tietz

	N-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	a) Letter of Appreciation to Sergeant Haddad from Tawfik Alazem, Detroit Director of U.S. Committee for Refugees and Immigrants
	b) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Daniel Fair, Thanking Captain Frye, Captain Scherlinck, Lieutenant Redmond, Officer Feld, Officer Rushton, Officer Barrows, Officer Bordo, Officer LaForest and Officer Browne for Assistance
	c) Letter of Appreciation to Chief Mayer from Tamara Jordan

	N-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Proposed
	N-5  Notice of Hearing for the Customers of Consumers Energy Company – Case No. U-16860
	N-6  City of Troy Snow and Ice Control Procedures
	N-7  Meet the Mayor at the Community Center – Dates, Times and Room Number
	N-8  Local Area Unemployment Statistics Update

	O. STUDY ITEMS
	O-1  City Council Rules of Procedure

	P. CLOSED SESSION:
	P-1  No Closed Session Requested

	Q. ADJOURNMENT




